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TRICO BANCSHARES

[ e

TriCo Bancshares (the “Company”) is a
bank holding company incorporated at
the direction of the Board of Directors
of Tri Counties Bank (the “Bank”) on
October 13, 1981. Pursuant to a corpo-
rate reorganization on September 7,
1982, the shareholders of the Bank
became shareholders of the Company
and the Bank became the wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. The
Bank currently is the only subsidiary of
the Company, and the Company has
not yet commenced any business opera-
tions independent of the Bank.

The Bank engages in the general
commercial banking business in the
California counties of Butte, Glenn,
Shasta, Siskiyou, Sutter and Tehama, as
well as portions of Lassen and Yuba. It
opened its first banking office in Chico,
California, in 1975, followed by branch
offices in Willows, Durham and
Orland, California. A second branch
office in Chico opened in 1980.In
1981, the Bank acquired the assets of
Shasta County Bank through a merger
of that bank with and into the Bank,
adding six additional offices in the
communities of Bieber, Burney,
Cottonwood, Fall River Mills, Palo
Cedro and Redding, California. In
1987, the Bank acquired certain assets
of the Wells Fargo Bank branch office
in Yreka, California, thereby extending
its service area into Siskiyou County. In

1988, the Bank opened a third Chico
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branch office in the Chico Mall, a
regional shopping center. In 1990, the

‘Bank opened a branch office in Yuba

City, the first to serve Sutter and Yuba
Counties. In 1994, the bank opened
four supermarket branches, one each in
Red Bluff and Yuba City, California,
and two in Redding, California. Also in
1994, the Company acquired Country
National Bank and merged it into the
Bank, thus adding an additional office
in Redding, California. In 1995, the
bank opened a fifth supermarket
branch in Chico, California.

The Bank’s operating policy since
its inception has emphasized retail
banking. Most of the Bank’s customers
are retail customers and small to medi-
um-sized businesses. The Bank empha-
sizes serving the needs of local busi-
nesses, farmers and ranchers, retired
individuals and wage earners.

The majority of the Bank’s loans
are direct loans made to individuals and
businesses in the area. Most of the
Bank’s deposits are attracted from indi-
viduals and business-related sources
within the Bank’s service area. The
Bank relies substantially on local pro-
motional activity; personal contacts by
its officers, directors, employees and
shareholders; extended hours; personal-
ized service and its reputation in the
communities it serves to compete with

other financial institutions.

MARKET MAKERS FOR
TRICO BANCSHARES
COMMON STOCK

Sutro & Co. Incorporated
P.O. Box 1688
Big Bear Lake, CA
92315-1688
Troy Norlander
(800) 288-2811
(909) 866-8966

Hoefer & Arnett Incorporatéd
353 Sacramento St. 10th FI.
San Francisco, CA 94111
Marc Arnett
(800) 346-5544
(415) 362-7111

Van Kasper & Company
600 California St. Suite 1700
San Francisco, CA
94108-2704
Richard Hennig
(800) 652-1747
(415) 954-0646

Piper Jaffray, Inc.
222 South Ninth Street
Minneapolis, MN
55402
Jeff Adamson
(612) 342-6200
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Our Tellers and Financial Services
Representatives are not only the
face of Tri Counties Bank, but its
heart and soul.

Although the Bank works hard to
maintain current technology, we
know that our people are the
secret to our success.
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TOTAL ASSETS
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*Restated on an historical basis to reflect the July 21, 1994 acquisition of Country National Bank on a pooling-of-interests basis,
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[37] FIVE YEAR SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA

1995 1994 1993° 1992° 1991

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:!
Interest income $ 46,011 $ 43,240 $ 40,947 $ 40,272 $ 40,451
Interest expense 17,988 15,680 13,996 15,600 18,988
Net interest income 28,023 27,560 26,951 24,672 21,463
Provision for loan losses 335 316 1,858 2,101 1,531
Net interest income after provision

for loan losses 27,688 27,244 25,093 22,571 19,932
Noninterest income 5,933 5,025 6,726 5,572 4,965
Noninterest expense 21,661 22,058 20,225 18,031 17,045
Income before income taxes 11,960 10,211 11,594 10,112 7,852
Provision for income taxes 4,915 4,350 4,779 4,112 3,031
Net income $ 7,045 $ 5,861 $ 6,815 $ 6,000 $ 4,821
SHARE DATA:?
Primary earnings per share $ 146 $ 1.18 $  1.42 $ 146 $ 1.10
Cash dividend paid per share 0.37 0.32 0.31 0.28 0.24
Common shareholders’ equity at year end 11.92 10.10 10.05 8.46 7.25
BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Total loans, gross $318,766 $307,103 $305,902 $317,518 $316,397
Total assets 603,554 593,334 575,897 492,404 439,358
Total deposits 516,193 491,172 515,999 451,346 400,479
Total shareholders’ equity 53,213 48,231 47,068 36,545 34,822
SELECTED FINANCIAL RATIOS:
Return on average assets 1.22% .99% 1.25% 1.25% 1.15%
Return on average common

shareholders’ equity 13.95% 12.42% 15.81% 19.48% 15.69%
Leverage ratio’ 8.92% 8.75% 8.18% 7.39% 7.97%
Total risk-based capital ratio 15.17% 14.65% 14.02% 11.94% 11.49%
Net interest margin* 5.36% 5.189% 5.49% 5.76% 5.87%
Allowance for loan losses to total

loans outstanding at end of year 1.75% 1.83% 1.95% 1.51% 1.31%

“Tax-exempt securities are presented on an actual yield basis.
2Retroactively adjusted to reflect 5-for-4 stock split effected in 1995, and the 12%, 15%, and 15% stock dividends

declared in 1993, 1992 and 1991, respectively.
“Tier 1 capital divided by total ending assets.
“‘Calculated on a tax equivalent basis.

SRestated on an historical basis to reflect the July 21, 1994 acquisition of Country National Bank on a pooling-of-interests basis.
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R PRESIDENT'S MESSAGE

TriCo Bancshares net earnings for 1995 should be “te
were $7,045,000. This is a record and a 20% “technology dri
increase over 1994. It represents earnings of Costs are best con
$1.45 per share versus $1.18 per share in 1994, guarding a
as adjusted for the five-for-four stock split efits are a bﬁnﬂéﬁ
effected as a stock dividend in September item. For tl
1995. major functions: Lo:
TriCo Bancshares Series B Preferred internal a -
Stock was redeemed August 1, 1995 as sched- We also
uled. The $4,000,000 in capital represented by broadly ¢
this issue was no longer needed. Earnings for- tempting current
merly accrued to pay the 10.5% annual divi- ing, whemrq?ﬂ\ :
dend became available to common sharehold- expensive ma

ers. In the fourth quarter, dividends on the Your Bank i
Common Stock were increased 62% from have exper
8¢/share to 13¢/share (on a post split basis.) branches have
During a year when giant banks were ating core (
growing through mergers to cut costs, our sub- market bran
sidiary Tri Counties Bank continued to broad- 1995 inside
en its customer base and increase deposits store branche
through internal growth. Personal customer Production
service has not been replaced by impersonal California,

cost-cutting technology. We believe operations Tri Col
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twenty years ago with $1,000,000 in capital.
We now have twenty offices and $5‘3,000,000
in shareholder’s equity. Total assets are over
$600,000,000. Those who accomplished this
growth are now relinquishing many responsi-
bilities to a second generation of senior man-
agement. In accord with our succession plan,
Richard P. Smith, 38, has been promoted to
Senior Vice President, Customer and
Employee Support, and Richard B. O’Sullivan,
38, has been promoted to Senior Vice

President, Customer Sales and Service.

Your confidence and support are much

appreciated.

Sincerely,

%}L/C) %ﬁm

Robert H. Steveson

President & Chief Executive Officer

5 ey
Richard P. Smith,
Senior Vice President,
Customer & Employee Support

Richard B. O'Sullivan, |
Senior Vice President,
Customer Sales & Service
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SMALL BUSINESS IS
BIG BUSINESS

We still acquire our business loans the
old-fashioned way: one loan at a time.

The hard work and personal service of our
business bankers has resulted in a healthy
loan portfolio.

In fact, the Small Business Administration’s
Office of Advocacy recently released a study
E showing Tri Counties Bank to be the most

“small-business friendly” bank in California.
Our aim is to strengthen our community by
successfully supporting enterprise. After all, it
wasn’t so long ago that Tri Counties Bank was a
small business, too.
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CUSTOMER SUPP

Our newly re-vamped 24 hour telephonebankmg
system is another way for our customers to
perform most common banklng fumctnmns
without entenna

For many of our customel dg
the telephone will be the most
banking technology they will ever use themselve .

And yet, the most important button
on that phone is “0”.

The customer must not be . cast adrift
in the electronlc world without ready rescue
by a live banking represe tative
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except share amounts)

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks
Federal funds sold

Cash and cash equivalents

Securities held-to-maturity (approximate fair value $116,576 and $131,649)
Securities available-for-sale

Loans:
Commercial
Consumer
Real estate mortgages
Real estate construction

Less: Allowance for loan losses

Net loans
Premises and equipment, net
Investment in real estate properties
Other real estate owned
Accrued interest receivable
Deferred income taxes
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing demand
Interest-bearing demand
Savings
Time certificates, $100,000 and over
Other time certificates

Total deposits

Repurchase agreements
Accrued interest payable
Other liabilities
Long-term debt
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note G)
Shareholders' equity:
Preferred stock, no par value: Authorized 1,000,000 shares;
Series B, issued and outstanding none (0) and 8,000 shares, respectively
Common stock, no par value: Authorized 20,000,000 shares;
issued and outstanding 4,464,828 and 3,513,707 shares, respectively
Retained earnings
Unrealized loss on securities available-for-sale, net

Total shareholders' equity
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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December 31,
1995 1994
$ 39,673 $ 39,709
25,600 —
65,273 39,709
116,865 143,788
76,246 74,706
152,173 153,957
64,445 58,471
81,888 76,673
20,260 18,002
318,766 307,103
5,580 5,608
313,186 301,495
13,189 13,198
1,173 1,173
631 2,124
4,609 4,748
3,106 5,445
9,276 7,448
$603,554 $593,834
$ 90,308 $ 88,957
84,314 80,657
161,479 190,800
13,439 1,118
166,653 129,640
516,193 491,172
— 30,457
3,162 1,760
4,694 3,715
26,292 18,499
550,341 545,603
== 3,899
44,315 43,552
9,548 4,488
(650) (3,708)
53,213 48,231
$603,554 $593,834
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(in thousands, except earnings per share)

Interest income:
Interest and fees on loans
Interest on investment securities—taxable
Interest on investment securities—tax exempt
Interest on federal funds sold

Total interest income

Interest expense:
Interest on interest-bearing demand deposits
Interest on savings
Interest on time certificates of deposit
Interest on time certificates of deposit, $100,000 and over
Interest on short-term borrowing
Interest on long-term debt

Total interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Noninterest income:
Service charges and fees
Other income
Securities gains (losses), net

Total noninterest income

Noninterest expenses:
Salaries and related expenses
Other, net

Total noninterest expenses

Net income before income taxes
Income taxes
Net income
Preferred stock dividends
Net income available to common shareholders
Primary earnings per common share

Fully diluted earnings per common share

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31,

1995 1994 1993
$ 33,776 $ 30,641 '$31,795
11,706 12,247 8,585
158 229 238

371 123 329
46,011 43,240 40,947
2,000 2,066 3,362
5,167 6,442 5,046
8,736 5,333 4,343
328 61 255
526 719 739
1,231 1,059 251
17,988 15,680 13,996
28,023 27,560 26,951
335 316 1,858
27,688 27,244 25,093
4,163 3,570 3,558
1,780 1,478 1,747
(10) (23) 1,421
5,933 5,025 6,726
10,787 10,550 9,072
10,874 11,508 11,153
21,661 22,058 20,225
11,960 10,211 11,594
4,915 4,350 4,779
$ 7,045 $ 5861 $ 6,815
245 420 630

$ 6,800 § 5,441 $ 6,185
$ 1.46 $ 1.8 § 1.42
$ 1.45 $ 1.18 $ 1.40
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993 (in thousands, except share amounts)

Series B Series C
Preferred Stock  Preferred Stock Common Stock
v e e Reuined  Lowon  Guarantee
Shares  Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Earnings Securities  for ESOP  Total

Balance, December 31, 1992 8,000 $ 3,899 16,900 $2,187 2,571,096 $29,002 $1,578 § — $(120) $36,546
Redemption of Preferred Stock — —- (16,900) (2,187) — — (95) — — (2,282)
Common Stock issued — — =4 — 529,000 7,734 — — — 7,734
12% Common Stock Dividend declared — — = — 319,848 5,917 (5,917) — — -_—
Exercise of Common Stock options ES —_ — — 16,310 165 —_ — — 165
Series B Preferred Stock cash dividends — — — = —_ — (420) — — (420)
Series C Preferred Stock cash dividends — —_ — — — S (210) — — (210)
Common Stock cash dividends - —_ — — — — (1,400) — —_ (1,400)
Net income — — — s — — 6,815 —_ —_ 6,815
Reduction of ESOP debt — — — — — = — — 120 120
Balance, December 31, 1993 8,000 3,899 — — 3,436,254 42,818 351 = — 47,068
Exercise of Common Stock options — — - — 77,453 403 — — — 403
Series B Preferred Stock cash dividends — — — — — — (420) — — (420)
Common Stock cash dividends — — - — — — (1,304) — — (1,304)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

method for investment securities — — = — — = — 270 — 270
Change in unrealized loss on securities - — — — — = —  (3,978) = (3,978)
Stock option amortization — — = — — 331 — — — 331
Net income = —_ — — — —_ 5,861 —_ — 5,861
Balance, December 31, 1994 8,000 3,899 — — 3,513,707 43,552 4,488  (3,708) = 48,231
Redemption of Preferred Stock (8,000) (3,899) — — —_ — (101) — (4,000)
Exercise of Common Stock options — — — — 72,694 554 - —- — 554
5-for-4 Common Stock split — — — = 878,427 — — — — —
Series B Preferred Stock cash dividends — — — — — — (245) — — (245)
Common Stock cash dividends — — — — —_ — (1,639) —- — (1,639)
Change in unrealized loss

on securities — —_ — — — — —_ 3,058 — 3,058
Stock option amortization e == —_ — — 209 — — — 209
Net income — - - . — — 7,045 —_ = 7,045
Balance, December 31, 1995 — § — = — 4,464,828 $44315 $9,548 § (650) $ —  $53,213

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Years ended December 31,
1995 1994 1993
Operating activities:
Net income $ 7,045 $ 5,861 $ 6,815
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided " L
by operating activities:
Provision for loan losses 335 316 r 1,858
Provision for losses on other real estate owned 99 53 642
Depreciation and amortization 1,600 1,405 1,030
(Accretion) amortization of investment
security (discounts) premiums, net 117 450 1,643
Deferred income taxes (134) (90) 1,126
Investment security (gains) losses, net 10 23 (1,453)
(Gain) loss on sale of loans (56) (173) (294)
(Gain) loss on sale of investments in real estate properties, net (78) 54 17
Origination of loans held for sale (9,666) (8,943) (75,552)
Proceeds from loan sales 9,835 8,186 77,299
Amortization of stock options 209 331 =
(Increase) decrease in interest receivable 139 (1,106) 770
Increase (decrease) in interest payable 1,402 30 (695)
(Increase) decrease in other assets and liabilities (876) (1,777) 180
Net cash provided by operating activities 9,981 4,620 13,352
Investing activities:
Proceeds from maturities of securities held-to-maturity 19,516 15,374 =
Purchases of securities held-to-maturity (2,740) (22,439) —
Proceeds from maturities of securities available-for-sale 12,427 23,282 63,940
Proceeds from sales of securities available-for-sale 6,993 36,490 182,092
Purchases of securities available-for-sale (5,638) (74,619) (327,531)
Net (increase) decrease in loans (12,529) (1,968) 6,323
Purchases of premises and equipment (1,335) (2,025) (1,861)
Proceeds from sale of real estate properties 1,862 2,408 262
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 18,556 (23,497) (76,775)
Financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in deposits 25,021 (24,827) 64,654
Borrowings (payments) under repurchase agreements (30,457) 30,457 —
Borrowings under long-term debt agreements 9,828 11,400 52,005
Payments of principal on long-term debt agreements (2,035) (45) (45,768)
Redemption of Preferred Stock (4,000) — (2,282)
Cash dividends — Preferred (245) (420) (630)
Cash dividends — Common (1,639) (1,304) (1,400)
Issuance of Common Stock 554 403 7,899
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities (2,973) 15,664 74,478
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 25,564 (3,213) 11,055
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 39,709 42,922 31,867
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 65,273 $ 39,709 $ 42,922
Supplemental information
Cash paid for taxes $ 5,240 § 3,809 § 5,431
Cash paid for interest expense $ 16,586 $ 15,650 $§ 13,365
Non-cash debt guarantee for ESOP $ — $ — $  (120)
Non-cash assets acquired through foreclosure $ 390 8§ 1,016 § 3,187
Non-cash transfers of OREQO to fixed assets $ — $ == § 504

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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EYNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993

NOTE A - General Summary of

Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of TriCo
Bancshares (the “Company”) conform to generally accepted
accounting principles and general practices within the bank-
ing industry. The following are descriptions of the more sig-
nificant accounting and reporting policies. Certain reclassi-
fications have been made to the prior years' financial state-
ments in order to conform with the classifications of the
December 31, 1995 financial statements.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the ac-
counts of the Company, its wholly-owned subsidiary, Tri
Counties Bank (the “Bank”), and the wholly-owned subsid-
jaries of the Bank. All significant intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. All
data has been restated on a historical basis to reflect the July
21, 1994 acquisition of Country National Bank on a pool-
ing-of-interests basis.

Nature of Operations

The Company operates fourteen branch offices and six
in-store branches in the California counties of Butte, Glenn,
Shasta, Siskiyou, Sutter, Tehama, and Lassen. The Bank’s
operating policy since its inception has emphasized retail
banking. Most of the Bank’s customers are retail customers
and small to medium sized businesses.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation
of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles requires Man-
agement to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and ex-
penses during the reporting period. Actual results could dif-
fer from those estimates.

Securities

The Company classifies its debt and marketable equity
securities into one of three categories: trading, available-for-
sale or held-to-maturity. Trading securities are bought and
held principally for the purpose of selling in the near term.
Held-to-maturity securities are those securities which the
Company has the ability and intent to hold until maturity.

All other securities not included in trading or held-to-matu-
rity are classified as available-for-sale. In 1995 and 1994 the
Company did not have any securities classified as trading.

Available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair value.
Held-to-maturity securities are recorded at amortized cost,
adjusted for the amortization or accretion of premiums or
discounts. Unrealized gains and losses, net of the related tax
effect, on available-for-sale securities are reported as a sepa-
rate component of shareholders’ equity until realized.

Premiums and discounts are amortized or accreted over
the life of the related investment security as an adjustment to
yield using the effective interest method. Dividend and in-
terest income are recognized when earned. Realized gains
and losses for securities are included in earnings and are de-
rived using the specific identification method for determin-
ing the cost of securities sold.

The Company adopted the provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities (SFAS
115) as of January 1, 1994. The effect of adopting SFAS 115
was to recognize an unrealized gain (net of tax) of $270,000
as an increase in shareholders' equity.

Loans

Loans are reported at the principal amount outstanding,
net of unearned income and the allowance for loan losses.

Loan origination and commitment fees and certain di-
rect loan origination costs are deferred, and the net amount
is amortized as an adjustment of the related loan’s yield over
the estimated life of the loan.

Loans on which the accrual of interest has been discon-
tinued are designated as nonaccrual loans. Accrual of inter-
est on loans is generally discontinued either when reasonable
doubt exists as to the full, timely collection of interest or prin-
cipal or when a loan becomes contractually past due by 90
days or more with respect to interest or principal. When
loans are 90 days past due, but in Management’s judgment
are well secured and in the process of collection, they are not
classified as nonaccrual. When aloan is placed on nonaccrual
status, all interest previously accrued but not collected is re-
versed. Income on such loans is then recognized only to the
extent that cash is received and where the future collection of
principal is probable. Interest accruals are resumed on such
loans only when they are brought fully current with respect
to interest and principal and when, in the judgment of Man-
agement, the loans are estimated to be fully collectible as to
both principal and interest.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL"S_:FK:FEMENTS

Years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993

NOTE A - (continued)

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established through a
provision for loan losses charged to ekpense. Loans are
charged against the allowance for loan losses when Manage-
ment believes that the collectibility of the principal is un-
likely or, with respect to consumer installment loans, accord-
ing to an established delinquency schedule. The allowance is
an amount that Management believes will be adequate to
absorb probable losses inherent in existing loans, leases and
commitments to extend credit, based on evaluations of the
collectibility, impairment and prior loss experience of loans,
leases and commitments to extend credit. The evaluations
take into consideration such factors as changes in the nature
and size of the portfolio, overall portfolio quality, loan con-
centrations, specific problem loans, commitments, and cur-
rent and anticipated economic conditions that may affect the
borrower’s ability to pay.

The Company adopted SFAS 114, Accounting by
Creditors for Impairment of a Loan, and SFAS 118,
Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan-Income
Recognition and Disclosures, as of January 1, 1995. Under
this statement, a loan is impaired when it is probable the
Company will be unable to collect all amounts due according
to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. SFAS 114
requires that certain impaired loans be measured based on
the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at
the loan’s original effective interest rate. As a practical expe-
dient, impairment may be measured based on the loan’s ob-
servable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the
loan is collateral dependent. When the measure of the im-
paired loan is less than the recorded investment in the loan,
the impairment is recorded through a valuation allowance.

The Company had previously measured the allowance
for loan losses using methods similar to those prescribed in
SFAS 114. As a result of adopting these statements, no
additional allowance for loan losses was required as of Janu-

ary 1, 1995.

Mortgage Operations

The Company sold substantially all of its conforming
long term residential mortgage loans originated during 1995,
1994 and 1993 for cash proceeds equal to the fair value of the
loans. These loans were originated through Bank branches
and not obtained from mortgage brokers. Servicing rights
were retained on all of the loans sold, for which the Com-
pany receives a servicing fee. Because the amounts are not

significant, the Company does not capitalize excess servic-
ing fees, which represent the present value of the spread be-
tween the face rate of the loan and the rate paid to'the inves-
tor net of the amount required to cover the cost'of servicing
the loan plus a profit margin given the expected life of the
loans. Gain or loss on the sale of loans represents the differ-
ence between the cash proceeds received and the carrying
value of the loans sold. The carrying value is the original
value of the loan adjusted for loan origination fees and costs.
At December 31, 1995, mortgage loans held for sale totaled
$783,000. The Company had entered into commitments to
sell all of these loans at year end. At December 31, 1995 and
1994, the Company serviced real estate mortgage loans for
others of $136 million and $139 million, respectively.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment, including those acquired un-
der capital lease, are stated at cost less accumulated deprecia-
tion and amortization. Depreciation and amortization ex-
penses are computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets or lease terms. Asset
lives range from 3-10 years for furniture and equipment and
15-30 years for land improvements and buildings.

Investment in Real Estate Properties

Investment in real estate properties is stated at the lower
of cost or market and consists of properties either acduired
directly or transferred from other real estate owned for the
purpose of development or to be held as income-earning as-
sets. l '

Subsequent to acquisition or transfer, properties included
in the investment in real estate properties account are peri-
odically evaluated. Any decline in value below the carrying
amount of a property is included in other expenses. Income
and expenses on the investment in real estate properties are
included in other expenses.

Other Real Estate Owned

Real estate acquired by foreclosure is carried at the lower
of the recorded investment in the property or its fair value.
Prior to foreclosure, the value of the underlying loan is writ-
ten down to the fair value of the real estate to be acquired by
a charge to the allowance for loan losses, when necessary.
Any subsequent write-downs are recorded as a valuation al-
lowance with a charge to other expenses in the income state-
ment. Expenses of such properties, net of related income,
and gains and losses on their disposition, are included in other
expenses.
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Years ended December 31,1995, 1994 and 1993

NOTE A - (continued)

NOTE C -Investment Securities

Income Taxes

The Company's accounting for income taxes is based on
an asset and liability approach. The Company recognizes
the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current
year, and deferred tax assets and liabilities for the future tax
consequences that have been recognized in its financial state-
ments or tax returns. The measurement of tax assets and
liabilities is based on the provisions of enacted tax laws.

Earnings Per Common Share

Earnings per common share are computed based on the
weighted average number of shares of common stock and
common stock equivalents outstanding. The weighted aver-
age number of shares used in the computation of primary
earnings per common share were: 4,656,893 for 1995,
4,641,384 for 1994 and 4,338,255 for 1993. The weighted
average number of shares used in the computation of fully
diluted earnings per common share were: 4,693,188 for 1995,
4,642,197 for 1994 and 4,416,135 for 1993. These shares
have been adjusted for the 1994 merger with Country Na-
tional Bank and the 1995 five-for-four stock split. Com-
mon stock equivalent shares consist of options outstanding
under the Company’s qualified and non-qualified stock op-
tion plans.

Cash Flows
For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, amounts due from banks

and Federal funds sold.

NOTE B - Restricted Cash Balances

Reserves (in the form of deposits with the Federal Re-
serve Bank) of $7,909,000 and $7,181,000 were maintained
to satisfy Federal regulatory requirements at December 31,
1995 and December 31, 1994. These reserves are included
in cash and due from banks in the accompanying balance
sheet.

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of invest-
ments in debt securities are summarized in the following
tables:

December 31, 1995

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

(in thousands)

Securities Held-to-Maturity

U.S. Treasury securities
and obligations of
U.S. government
corporations and
agencies

Obligations of
states and political

$ 29,744 $ 588 $ (34 § 30,298

subdivisions 849 — 9) 840
Mortgage-backed

securities 86,272 493 (1,327) 85,438

Totals $116,865 $ 1,081 $(1,370) $116,576

Securitics Available-for-Sal

U.S. Treasury securities
and obligations of
U.S. government

corporations and
$ 42,038 $ 225 $ (45) $ 42,218

agencies
Obligations of

states and political

subdivisions 1,700 42 — 1,742
Mortgage-backed

securities 29,076 28 (486) 28,618
Other securities 3,668 —_ — 3,668

Totals $ 76,482 $ 295 $(531) § 76,246
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Years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993 ®

NOTE C - (continued)

December 31, 1994

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
- (in thousands)
U.S. Treasury securities
and obligations of
U.S. government
corporations and
agencies $ 45,631 $ 9 $ (1,982) $ 43,658

Obligations of

states and political

subdivisions 1,098 il (49) 1,050
Mortgage-backed

securities

97,059 —
Totals $143,788 $10

(10,118) 86,941

$(12,149) $131,649

Securities Available-for-Sale

U.S. Treasury securities
and obligations of
U.S. government
corporations and
agencies

Obligations of
states and political
subdivisions 2,321 18 33) 2,306

Mortgage-backed

$ 37,865 $— % (1,583) § 36,282

securities 36,374 — (3,745) 32,629
Other securities 3,489 —_ — 3,489
Totals $ 80,049 $18 $ (5,361) $ 74,706

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt se-
curities at December 31, 1995 by contractual maturity are
shown below. Actual maturities may differ from contractual
maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or
prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penal-
ties.

Estimated
Amortized Fair
Cost Value
(in thousands)
iritl -to- ri
Due in one year $ 3,142 § 3,152
Due after one year through five years 27,635 28,114
Due after five years through ten years 11,494 11,529
Due after ten years 74,594 73,781
Totals $116,865 $116,576
ceuritics Available-for-
Due in one year $ 16,890 $ 16,883
Due after one year through five years 24,949 25,167

Due after five years through ten years 432 448

Due after ten years 30,543 30,080

72,814 72,578
Other Securitics 3,668 3,668
Totals $ 76,482 $ 76,246

Proceeds from sales of investments in debt securities:

3

.
v Gross

Gross Gross
For the Year Proceeds Gains i+ Losses
- f
(in thousands)
1995 $ 6,993 $ 40 $ 50
1994 $ 36,490 $ 117 $ 140

On November 17, 1995, the Company adopted the
FASB Special Report concerning the implementation of
SFAS 115 and it elected to transfer certain treasury securities
with an amortized cost of $10,062,266 and an unrealized gain
of $1,034,922 from the held-to-maturity to the available-
for-sale category.

Investment securities with an aggregate carrying value of
$35,930,000 and $35,243,000 at December 31, 1995 and
1994, respectively, were pledged as collateral.

NOTE D - Allowance for Loan Losses

Activity in the allowance for loan losses was as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

1995 1994 1993
(in thousands)
Balance, beginning of year $ 5,608 $ 5973 $ 4,798
Provision charged to operations 335 316 1,858
Loans charged off (581) (1,050) (1,275)
Recoveries of loans previously
charged off 218 369 592
Balance, end of year $ 5580 $ 5608 § 5973

Loans classified as nonaccrual amounted to approxi-
mately $2,213,000, $1,122,000, and $1,595,000 at Decem-
ber 31,1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively. If interest on those
loans had been accrued, such income would have been ap-
proximately $166,000, $123,000 and $60,000 in 1995, 1994
and 1993, respectively.
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INANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D - (continued)

As of December 31, the Company’s recorded investment
in impaired loans and the related valuation allowance calcu-

lated under SFAS 114 were as follows:

1995
Recorded Valuation
Investment  Allowance
Impaired loans - S —
Valuation allowance required $ 552 $ 380
No valuation allowance required 4,534 =
Total impaired loans $5,086 $ 380

This valuation allowance is included in the allowance
for loan losses shown above.

The average recorded investment in impaired loans for
the year ended December 31, 1995 was $3,579,000. The
Company recognized interest income on impaired loans of

$345,000 for the year ended December 31, 1995.

NOTE E - Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment were comprised of:

December 31,

1995 1994

(in thousands)
Premises $10,366 $ 9,948
Furniture and equipment 9,118 8,620
19,484 18,568

Less:
Accumulated depreciation

and amortization (8,964) (8,047)

10,520 10,521
Land and land improvements 2,669 2,677
$13,189 $13,198

Depreciation and amortization of premises and equip-

ment amounted to $1,344,000, $1,202,000 and $1,030,000
in 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.

NOTE F - Long-Term Debt and Other

Borrowings

Long-term debt is as follows:
December 31,
1995 1994

(in thousands)
FHLB loan, fixed rate of 4.56%

payable on March 21, 1995 $ — § 2,000
FHLB loan, fixed rate of 5.14%

payable on March 21, 1996 2,000 2,000
FHLB loan, fixed rate of 5.53%

payable on March 21, 1997 3,000 3,000
FHLB loan, effective rate of 4.38%

payable on April 28, 1998 5,000 5,000
FHLB loan, fixed rate of 5.62%

payable on February 4, 1999 400 400
FHLB loan, fixed rate of 6.14%

payable on March 21, 1999 3,000 3,000
FHLB loan, fixed rate of 5.84%

payable on November 6, 2000 1,500 1,500
FHLB loan, fixed rate of 5.90%

payable January 16, 2001 1,000 1,000
FHLB repurchase agreements, fixed rate

of 5.85% payable on July 17, 1997 9,828 —

Capital lease obligations on equipment,

effective rate of 8.8% payable

monthly through August 7, 1995 — 26
Capital lease obligation on prem-

ises, effective rate of 13% payable

monthly in varying amounts

through December 1, 2009 564 573

Total long-term debt $26,292  $18,499

The Bank maintains a collateralized line of credit with
the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco. Based on
the FHLB stock requirements at December 31, 1995, this
line provided for maximum borrowings of $32,197,000 of
which $15,900,000 was outstanding, leaving $16,297,000
available. The maximum month-end outstanding balances
of repurchase agreements in 1995 and 1994 were $25,475,000
and $30,457,000, respectively. The Bank has available un-
used lines of credit totaling $33,000,000 for Federal funds

transactions.
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Years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993

NOTE G - Commitments and
Contingencies (See also Note O)

At December 31, 1995, future minimum commitments
under non-cancellable capital and operating leases with ini-
tial or remaining terms of one year or more are as follows:

Capital ~ Operating
Leases Leases
(in thousands)
1996 $ 83 $ 598
1997 84 458
1998 85 457
1999 86 349
2000 87 287
Thereafter 329 2,463
Future minimum lease payments 1,254 $ 4,612
Less amount representing interest 690 E———
Present value of future lease
payments $ 564

Rent expense under operating leases was $887,000 in
1995, $767,000 in 1994, and $530,000 in 1993.

In 1995, the Bank entered into license agreements to
rent space in two supermarkets. These are twenty year agree-
ments with five year renewals.

The Bank is a defendant in legal actions arising from
normal business activities. Management believes that these
actions are without merit or that the ultimate liability, if any,
resulting from them will not materially affect the Bank’s fi-
nancial position.

NOTE H - Preferred Stock

At December 31, 1994 the Company had one series of
cumulative nonvoting preferred stock outstanding. This pre-
ferred stock was redeemed on August 1, 1995. The follow-
ing table summarizes the terms of the issue at December 31,
1994.

Per Share

Dividend Redemption Liquidation
Series Rate Shares Date alue
B 10.5% 8,000 Aug. 1,1995 $500

NOTE I - Dividend Restrictions

The Bank paid to the Company cash 'dividehds in the
aggregate amounts of $3,200,000, none ($0) and $500,600
in 1995, 1994 and 1993. The Bank is regulated by the Fed- .
eral Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and the Cali-
fornia State Banking Department. California banking laws
limit the Bank’s ability to pay dividends to the lesser of (1)
retained earnings or (2) net income for the last three fiscal
years, less cash distributions paid during such period. Under
this regulation, at December 31, 1995, the Bank may pay
dividends of $16,237,000.

NOTE J - Stock Options

In May 1995, the Company adopted the TriCo
Bancshares 1995 Incentive Stock Option Plan (95 Plan) cov-
ering key employees. Under the '95 Plan 150,000 shares were
reserved for issuance. The option price cannot be less than
the fair market value of the Common Stock at the date of
grant. Options for the ‘95 Plan expire on the tenth anniver-
sary of the grant date.

The Company also has outstanding options under one
plan approved in 1993 and two plans approved in 1989.
Options under the 1993 plan vest over a six year period.
Options under the 1989 plan vest 20% annually. Unexercised
options for the 1993 and 1989 plans terminate 10 years from
the date of the grant. :

Stock option activity is summarized in the following table:

Number Option Price
of Shares* Per Share* -
Outstanding at December 31, 1993 663,755 $574 to $7.86
Country National Bank
Options exchanged for shares (35,587)

(61,228) 574 to 7.86
(6,666) 743 to 743

560,274 743 to 7.86
31,250 7.86 to 13.20
Options exercised (72,694) 743 to  7.86

Outstanding at December 31, 1995 518,830 $7.43 to $13.20
*Adjusted for 5-for-4 stock split effected September 22, 1995.

Options exercised
Options cancelled

Outstanding at December 31, 1994
Options granted
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® Years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993

NOTE K - Other Operating Expenses

and Income

The components of other operating expenses were as fol-
lows:

Years Ended December 31,

1995 1994 1993
(in thousands)
Equipment and data processing $ 2,508 § 2,497 $ 1,790
Occupancy 1,573 1,469 1,413
Advertising 563 650 555
Net other real estate owned expense 201 190 845
Net losses on investment
in real estate 25 17 153
Professional fees 593 1,172 1,190
Assessments 727 1,199 1,114
Postage 405 335 413
Other 4,279 3,979 3,680

Total other operating expenses - $10,874 $11,508 $11,153

Commissions on sales of annuities and mutual funds in
the amounts of $900,000, $988,000 and $927,000 for the
years 1995, 1994 and 1993 are included in other income.

NOTE L - Income Taxes

The current and deferred components of the income tax
provision were comprised of:

Years Ended December 31,
1995 1994 1993

(in thousands)
Current T'ax Provision:

Federal $ 3,640 $ 3,189 $ 4,331
State 1,409 1,251 1,462
Total current 5,049 4,440_ 5,793
Deferred Tax Benefit:
Federal (36) (21) (738)
State (98) (69) (276)
Total deferred (134) (90) (1,014)

Total income taxes $ 4,915 $ 4,350 $ 4,779

Taxes recorded directly to stockholders’ equity are not
included in the preceding table . Taxes and tax benefits
relating to changes in the unrealized gains and losses on avail-
able-for-sale investment securities amounting to $2,473,000
in 1995 and ($2,697,000) in 1994 were recorded directly to
shareholders' equity.

The provisions for income taxes applicable to income be-
fore taxes for the years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and
1993 differ from amounts computed by applying the statu-
tory Federal income tax rates to income before taxes.

The effective tax rate and the statutory federal income
tax rate are reconciled as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

1995 1994 1993

Federal statutory income

tax rate 34.2% 34.0% 34.0%
State income taxes, net of federal

tax benefit 7.4 8.0 7.4
Tax-exempt interest on municipal

obligations (.4) (.8) 7N
Merger expenses not deductible

for tax purposes — 1.5 4
Other (1) (1) |
Effective Tax Rate 41.1% 42.6% 41.2%

The components of the net deferred tax asset of the Com-
pany as of December 31, were as follows:

1995 1994
(in thousands)
Deferred Tax Assets:
Loan losses $2,151 $2,146
Unrealized loss on securities 500 2,697
Deferred compensation 1,348 1,100
OREO write downs 178 170
Capital leases = 158
Loss on investment in real estate 228 229
Other 162_ . 72
Total deferred tax assets 4,567 6,572
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Depreciation (608) (718)
Capital leases (78) —
Securities accretion (273) (126)
Other (502) (283)

Total deferred tax liability (1461 (1,127)
Net deferred tax asset $ 3,106 $ 5,445
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Years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993

NOTE M - Retirement Plans

Substantially all employees with at least one year of ser-
vice are covered by a discretionary employee stock ownership
plan (ESOP). Contributions are made to the plan at the
discretion of the Board of Directors. Country National Bank
had an ESOP which was merged into the TriCo plan during
1995. Contributions to the plan(s) totaling $432,000 in 1995,
$378,000 in 1994 and $384,000 in 1993 are included in sal-
ary expense.

The Company has a supplemental retirement plan for
directors and a supplemental executive retirement plan cov-
ering key executives. These plans are nonqualified defined
benefit plans and are unsecured and unfunded. The Com-
pany has purchased insurance on the lives of the participants
and intends to use the cash values of these policies (3,926,000
and $3,444,000 at December 31, 1995 and 1994, respectively)

to pay the retirement obligations.

The following table sets forth the plans’ status:

December 31,

1995_ 1994 1993
(in thousands)

Actuarial present value of

benefit obligations:

Vested benefit obligation $(2,795) $(1,780)  $(1,893)

Accumulated benefit obligation (2,795) (1,780) (1,893)

Projected benefit obligation

for service rendered to date (2,795) (1,973) (2,167)

Plan assets at fair value $ = $ — 3 —
Projected benefit obligation in

excess of plan assets $(2,795) $(1,973)  $(2,167)

Unrecognized net loss

from past experience different

from that assumed and effects

of changes in assumptions 664 67 392
Prior service cost not yet

recognized in net

periodic pension cost 123 120 128
Unrecognized net obligation
at transition 322 357 518

Accrued pension cost included

in other liabilities $(1,686) $(1,429) $(1,129)
Net pension cost included

the following components:
Service cost-benefits earned

during the period $ 100 $ 114 § 100
Interest cost on projected

benefit obligation 159 158 134
Net amortization and deferral 46 69 58
Net periodic pension cost $ 305 $ 341 § 292

The net periodic pension cost was determined using a
discount rate assumption of 7.0% for 1995, 7.75% for 1994,
and 7.0% for 1993. The rates of increase in confpensation
used were 0% to 5%. .

The Company has an Executive Deferred Compensa-
tion Plan which allows directors and key executives desig-
nated by the Board of Directors of the Company to defer a
portion of their compensation. The Company has purchased
insurance on the lives of the participants and intends to use
the cash values of these policies to pay the compensation ob-
ligations. At December 31, 1995 and 1994 the cash values
exceeded the recorded liabilities.

NOTE N - Related Party Transactions

Certain directors, officers, and companies with which they
are associated were customers of, and had banking transac-
tions with, the Company or its Subsidiary in the ordinary
course of business. It is the Company’s policy that all loans
and commitments to lend to officers and directors be made
on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and
collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable trans-
actions with other borrowers of the Bank.

The following table summarizes the activity in these loans
for 1995.

Balance Balance
December 31, Advances/ December 31,
1994 New Loans Payments 1995

(in thousands)
$9,252 $1,361 $2,141 $ 8,472
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NOTE O - Financial Instruments
With Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The Bank is a party to financial instruments with off-
balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet
the financing needs of its customers. These financial instru-
ments include commitments to extend credit and standby
letters of credit. Those instruments involve, to varying de-
grees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recog-
nized in the balance sheet. The contract amounts of those
instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Bank has
in particular classes of financial instruments.

The Bank’s exposure to credit loss in the event of non-
performance by the other party to the financial instrument
for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit
written is represented by the contractual amount of those in-
struments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making
commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-
balance sheet instruments.

Contractual Amount
December 31,

1995 1994
(in thousands)
Financial instruments whose contract
amounts represent credit risk:
Commitments to extend credit:
Commercial loans $27,763 $30,449
Consumer loans 39,114 43,205
Real estate mortgage loans 335 146
Real estate construction loans 10,815 7,715
Standby letters of credit 414 451

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend
to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have
fixed expiration dates of one year or less or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the
commitments are expected to expire without being drawn
upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily rep-
resent future cash requirements. The Bank evaluates each
customer’s credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The
amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the
Bank upon extension of credit, is based on Management’s
credit evaluation of the customer. Collateral held varies, but
may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant
and equipment and income-producing commercial proper-
ties.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments
issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a cus-
tomer to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued
to support private borrowing arrangements. Most standby
letters of credit are issued for one year or less. The credit risk
involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as
that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. Col-
lateral requirements vary, but in general follow the require-
ments for other loan facilities.

NOTE P - Concentration of Credit Risk

Tri Counties Bank grants agribusiness, commercial and
residential loans to customers located throughout the north-
ern Sacramento Valley and northern mountain regions of
California. The Bank has a diversified loan portfolio within
the business segments located in this geographical area.

NOTE Q_- Disclosure of Fair Value

of Financial Instruments

Cash & Short-Term Investments
For these short-term instruments, the carrying amount
is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Securities
For all securities, fair values are based on quoted market
prices or dealer quotes. See footnote C for further analysis.

Loans

The fair value of variable rate loans is the current carry-
ing value. These loans are regularly adjusted to market rates.
The fair value of other types of fixed rate loans is estimated
by discounting the future cash flows using current rates at
which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar
credit ratings for the same remaining maturities. Fair value
for nonaccrual loans is reported at carrying value and is in-
cluded in the net loan total. Since the allowance for loan
losses exceeds any potential adjustment for nonaccrual valu-
ation, no further valuation adjustment has been made.
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NOTE Q_- (continued)

Accrued Interest Receivable
For these short-term instruments, the carrying amount
is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Deposit Liabilities and Long-Term Debt

The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts, and
certain money market deposits is the amount payable on de-
mand at the reporting date. These values do not consider
the estimated fair value of the Company’s core deposit intan-
gible, which is a significant unrecognized asset of the Com-
pany. The fair value of time deposits and debt is based on
the discounted value of contractual cash flows.

Other Liabilities
Other liabilities represent short-term instruments. The
carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Commitments to Extend Credit and
Standby Letters of Credit

The fair value of letters of credit and standby letters of
credit is not significant.

Accrued Interest Payable
For these short-term instruments, the carrying amount
is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial in-
struments are as follows:

December 31, 1995

Carrying Fair
Financial assets: ~ Amount Value
(In thousands)
Cash and short-term investments $ 65,273 $ 65,273
Securities:
Held-to-maturity 116,865 116,576
Available-for-sale 76,246 76,246
Loans, net 313,186 316,764
Accrued interest receivable 4,609 4,609
Financial liabilities:
Deposits 516,193 516,653
Accrued interest payable 3,162 3,162
Other liabilities 4,694 4,694
Long-term borrowings 26,292 26,430

TRICO
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December 31, 1994

Carrying Fair
Financial assets: Amount Value
! :
(In thousands)
Cash and short-term investments $ 39,709 ' $ 39,709
Securities:
Held-to-maturity 143,788 131,649
Available-for-sale 74,706 74,706
Loans, net 301,495 297,367
Accrued interest receivable 4,748 4,748
Financial liabilities:
Deposits 491,172 490,802
Accrued interest payable 1,760 1,760
Other liabilities 3,715 3,715
Long-term borrowing 18,499 18,441

NOTE R - Acquisition

On July 21, 1994, the Company issued approximately
490,000 shares of its common stock in exchange for all of the
outstanding common stock of Country National Bank,
Redding, California. This business transaction was accounted
for as a pooling-of-interests combination and accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements and financial data for
periods prior to the combination have been restated to in-
clude the accounts and results of operations of Country Na-
tional Bank. Certain reclassifications have been made to
Country National Bank to conform to TriCo Bancshares’
presentation.

The results of operations previously reported by the sepa-
rate enterprises and the combined amounts presented in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements are summa-
rized as follows:

Year ended
December 31,
1993

(in thousands)

Net interest income:

TriCo Bancshares $24,208
Country National Bank - I 2,743
Combined $26,951
Net income:

TriCo Bancshares $ 6,339
Country National Bank B 476
Combined $ 6,815
Net income per share:

TriCo Bancshares* $ 1.89
Country National Bank* 1.28
Combined $ 1.78
*As originally reported.
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Years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE § - Future Financial
Accounting Standards

In May 1995, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 122, Accounting for Mortgage Servicing Rights, which
1s effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,1995.
This statement requires, under certain circumstances, enti-
ties to recognize as a separate asset an amount related to the
right to service mortgage loans. The Company will adopt
this statement on January 1, 1996 and does not expect that it
will have a material impact on its financial position or results
of operations.

In October 1995, the FASB issued Statement of Finan-
cial Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation (SFAS 123), which is effective for trans-
actions entered into for fiscal years beginning after Decem-
ber 15, 1995. The statement defines a fair value based method
of accounting for stock-based compensation. As permitted
by SFAS 123, the Company will not change its method of
accounting for stock options but will provide the additional
required disclosures beginning in fiscal 1996.

NOTE T - TriCo Bancshares

Financial Statements

TriCo Bancshares (Parent Only)
Balance Sheets

December 31,

Assets 1995 1994
(in thousands)

Cash $ 134 § 2,527

Investment in Tri Counties Bank 52,868 45,590

Other assets 303 185

Total assets $ 53,305 $ 48,302

Liabilities and
shareholders' equity

Total liabilities $ 928 71

Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, no par value:
Authorized 1,000,000 shares;
Series B, issued and outstanding

none (0) and 8,000 shares —_ 3,899
Common stock, no par value:
Authorized 20,000,000 shares;
issued and outstanding 4,464,828
and 3,513,707 shares, respectively 44,315 43,552
Retained earnings 9,548 4,488
Unrealized loss on securities
available-for-sale, net (650)  (3,708)
Total shareholders' equity 53,213 48,231

Total liabilities and

shareholders' equity $53.305 $48.302

Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31,

- 1995 1994 1993
(in thousands)
Interest income $ — _35 — 5 —
Administration expense 282 334 199
Loss before equity in net income of
Tri Counties Bank (282) (334) (199)
Equity in net income of Tri Counties
Bank:
Distributed 3,200 — 808
Undistributed 4,010 6,103 6,124
Income tax credits 117 92 82
Net income $7,045 $5861 $6,815

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31,

1995 1994 1993
(in thousands)

Operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net
income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Undistributed equity in
Tri Counties Bank
Deferred income taxes
Increase (decrease) in other
operating assets and liabilities 19

$7,045 $5861 $6,815

(4,010)  (6,103)  (6,124)
(117) (92) (82)

(168) 205

Net cash provided by (used

for) operating activities 2,937 (502) 814

Investing activities:
Capital contributed to

Tri Counties Bank — (183) —
Net cash provided by (used
for) investing activities — (183) —

Financing activities:

Issuance of common stock 554 403 7,899
Redemption of preferred stock (4,000) — (2,282)
Cash dividends — preferred (245) (420) (630)
Cash dividends — common (1,639) (1,304) (1,400}
Net cash provided by (used
for) financing activities (5,330) (1,321) 3,587
Increase (decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents (2,393)  (2,006) 4,401
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 2,527 4,533 132
Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year $ 134 $2,527 $4,533
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS _ [89)

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of TriCo Bancshares and Subsidiary:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets of TriCo Bancshares (a California corpora-
tion) and Subsidiary as of December 31, 1995 and 1994,
and the related consolidated statements of income, changes
in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 1995. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the
Corporation’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits. We did not audit the financial statements of
Country National Bank, a company acquired during 1994
in a transaction accounted for as a pooling-of-interests, as
discussed in Note R to the consolidated financial state-
ments. Such statements are included in TriCo Bancshares'
consolidated statements of income, changes in sharehold-
ers’ equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31,
1993 and reflect 7% of consolidated net income in 1993.
These statements were audited by other auditors whose
report has been furnished to us and our opinion, insofar as
it relates to amounts included for Country National Bank,
is based solely upon the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally

accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that

we plan and perform the audit to obtain re;son%bie assur-
ance about whether the financial statements’ are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assess-
ing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits, and the report of the other auditors, provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of
the other auditors, the consolidated financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of TriCo Bancshares and Subsidiary as of
December 31, 1995 and 1994, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 1995 in conformity Wit}}l‘
generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note A to the consolidated financial
statements, effective January 1, 1994, the Corporation
changed its method of accounting for certain investments
in debt and equity securities as required by Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards No. 115.

MWZC?

San Francisco, California

January 23, 1996
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Market Information

The Common Stock of the Company trades on the
NASDAQ National Market under the symbol “TCBK.” The
shares were first listed in the NASDAQ_Stock Market in
April 1993. The active market makers on NASDAQ_in-
clude: Hoefer & Arnett, Incorporated, Piper Jaffray Com-
panies Inc., Sutro & Co. Inc. and Van Kasper & Co. Inc.

The following table summarizes the Common Stock high
and low trading prices and volume of shares traded by quar-
ter as reported by NASDAQ. The prices have been adjusted
to reflect the five-for-four stock split effected as a stock divi-
dend in September 1995.

Prices of the Approximate

Company's Common Trading

Stock Volume

Quarter Ended:? High Low (in shares)
March 31, 1994 § 19.60 $ 14.80 227,560
June 30, 1994 16.00 13.60 131,258
September 30, 1994 15.20 12.20 69,651
December 31, 1994 13.20 11.00 139,441
March 31, 1995 12.80 10.80 118,010
June 30, 1995 13.20 12.20 213,026
September 30, 1995 16.60 12.00 535,140
December 31, 1995 16.40 14.50 236,821

! Quarterly trading activity has been compiled from NASDAQ trading reports.
2 Adjusted to reflect the 5-for-4 stock split effected on September 22, 1995.

Holders

As of December 31, 1995, there were approximately
1,787 holders of record of the Company’s Common Stock.

Dividends

The Company has paid quarterly dividends since March
1990. After giving effect to the September 1995 five-for-
four stock split, dividends had been paid at the rate of $.08
per share. In December 1995, the Company raised the quar-
terly dividend to $.13 per share. In addition to the cash divi-
dends, the Company has periodically paid stock dividends.
In 1993 the Company paid a stock dividend of 12%. The
holders of Common Stock of the Company are entitled to
receive cash dividends when and as declared by the Board of
Directors, out of funds legally available therefor, subject to
the restrictions set forth in the California General Corpora-
tion Law (the “Corporation Law”). The Corporation Law
provides that a corporation may make a distribution to its
shareholders if the corporation’s retained earnings equal at
least the amount of the proposed distribution.

The Company, as sole shareholder of the Bank, is en-
titled to dividends when and as declared by the Bank's Board
of Directors, out of funds legally available therefore, subject
to the powers of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(the "FDIC") and the restrictions set forth in the California
Financial Code (the "Financial Code"). The Financial Code
provides that a bank may not make any distributions in ex-
cess of the lessor of: (i) the bank's retained earnings, or (ii)
the bank's net income for the last three fiscal years, less the
amount of any distributions made by the bank to its share-
holders during such period. However, a bank may, with the
prior approval of the California Superintendent of Banks (the
"Superintendent”), make a distribution to its shareholders of
up to the greater of (A) the bank's retained earnings, (B) the
bank's net income for its last fiscal year, or (C) the bank's net
income for its current fiscal year. If the Superintendent de-
termines that the shareholders' equity of a bank is inadequate
or that a distribution by the bank to its shareholders would
be unsafe or unsound, the Superintendent may order a bank
to refrain from making a proposed distribution. The FDIC
may also order a bank to refrain from making a proposed
distribution when, in its opinion, the payment of such would
be an unsafe or unsound practice. The Bank paid dividends
totaling $3,200,000 to the Company in 1995. As of Decem-
ber 31, 1995 and subject to the limitations and restrictions
under applicable law, the Bank had funds available for divi-
dends in the amount of $16,237,000.

The Federal Reserve Act limits the loans and advances
that the Bank may make to its affiliates. For purposes of
such Act, the Company is an affiliate of the Bank. The Bank
may not make any loans, extensions of credit or advances to
the Company if the aggregate amount of such loans, exten-
sions of credit, advances and any repurchase agreements and
investments exceeds 10% of the capital stock and surplus of
the Bank. Any such permitted loan or advance by the Bank
must be secured by collateral of a type and value set forth in
the Federal Reserve Act.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

As TriCo Bancshares (the “Company” ) has not com-
menced any business operations independent of Tri Counties
Bank (the “Bank”), the following discussion pertains primarily
to the Bank. Average balances, including such balances used
in calculating certain financial ratios, are generally comprised
of average daily balances for the Company. Unless otherwise
stated, interest income and net interest income are presented
on a tax equivalent basis.

All financial information has been restated on a historical
basis to reflect the July 21, 1994 merger with Country Na-
tional Bank (CNB) accounted for on a pooling-of-interests
basis.

Overview

As reported last year, the groundwork began in 1993 for
establishing the base for future growth of the Bank. In 1994
the opening of four supermarket branches and the acquisition
of Country National Bank laid the foundation for solidifying
the Bank’s community bank leadership in its market area. The
Bank’s external and internal structures continued to build and
develop in 1995. The Bank opened a branch in Albertson’s
Chico store in November and another is scheduled to open in
Albertson’s Grass Valley store in March 1996. A loan pro-
duction office was opened in Bakersfield, California in De-
cember and the Bank is planning to open one in Sacramento
in the first quarter of 1996. These are relatively low cost
ways to expand the Bank’s service area. Changes in the orga-
nizational structure, coupled with new and upgraded prod-
uct delivery systems, are helping the Bank remain competi-
tive in the ever changing California banking environment.

Management continues to believe the Bank’s establish-
ment of the supermarket branches was well timed. Tri Coun-
ties Bank is one of few community banks that is employing
in-store branches as part of a service delivery strategy. It is
apparent from their actions that in-store branches will con-
tinue to play an important role in long term service delivery
strategies for the two major California banks. The aggres-
sive position taken by those two banks to tie up contracts
with the major store chains has presented Management with
a challenge to obtain desirable locations for our expansion
plans. Management still hopes to expand the Bank’s service
area by adding two to four in-store branches in each of the
next several years.

Net income of $7,045,000 for 1995 was a record for the
Company. Income increased $1,184,000 or 20.2% over 1994
and is attributable to several factors. Net interest income
increased $463,000 (not tax adjusted) as the increase of
$2,771,000 in interest income was offset in part by an in-
crease of $2,308,000 in interest expense. Interest rates re-
ceived on earning assets and rates paid on interest-bearing

TRICO BANCSHARES

liabilities both increased in 1995. The net interest margin
improved to 5.36% in 1995 from 5.18% in 1994. Noninterest
income increased $908,000 of which $593,000 was due to
service charge and fee income as the result of both rate changes
and increased volumes. Noninterest expenses decreased
$397,000. Major favorable impacts to these expenses resulted
from a decrease in FDIC insurance of $380,000, or 35.8%,
and the elimination of the one time costs of approximately
$840,000 relating to the 1994 acquisition of Country Na-
tional Bank. The full year effect of the expenses related to
the four supermarket branches which were opened during
1994, as well as other cost increases, offset these cost reduc-
tions in part. The Company’s 1995 income tax rate decreased
1.5% to 41.1% due to the reduction in non-deductible acqui-
sition costs which were incurred in 1994.

Assets of the Company totaled $603,554,000 at Decem-
ber 31, 1995, which was an increase of $9,720,000 from 1994
ending balances. Loan balances increased $11,673,000 to
$318,766,000.

During 1995 the treasury yield curve flattened. That is,
rates earned on short term investments were within 100 to
150 basis points of the 30 year bond rates. Consequently,
Management decided not to reinvest funds received from
maturing instruments or prepayments of principal from mort-
gage backed securities in longer term securities. As a result,
the securities portfolio decreased about $25,383,000 or 11.6%
from year ago balances. At December 31, 1995, the Com-
pany had $25,600,000 invested in overnight Federal funds
versus none at year end 1994. ’

Net income for 1994 decreased to $5,861,000 from
$6,815,000 in 1993. Contributing factors to the decrease
included: costs associated with the CNB acquisition includ-
ing investment banking fees, legal and accounting fees, as
well as costs associated with converting CNB to the banking
systems at Tri Counties Bank; startup costs and expenses
related to the four new supermarket branches. Significant
gains of $1,421,000 on the sale of securities realized in 1993
versus a small loss in 1994. These unfavorable impacts on
earnings were offset in part by a $609,000 (2.3%) (not tax
adjusted) increase in net interest income. Also, other in-
come was down slightly. The quality of the Bank’s loan port-
folio allowed Management to reduce the provision for loan
losses by $1,542,000 in 1994 which helped to offset the ad-
verse factors.

Management's goal for the Bank is to deliver a full array
of competitive products to its customers while maintaining
the personalized customer service of a community bank. We
believe this strategy will provide growth and above average
returns for our shareholders.
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(A) RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

AENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

Years Ended December 31,
1995 1994 1993! 19921 19911
Interest income: (in thousands, except earnings per share amounts)
Interest and fees on loans $ 33,776 $ 30,641 $ 31,795 $ 33,695 $ 35,852
Interest on investment securities—taxable 11,706 12,247 8,585 6,170 3,192
Interest on investment securities—tax exempt? 272 401 426 489 1,347
Interest on federal funds sold 371 123 329 129 530
Total interest income 46,125 - 43412 41,}35_ 40,483 40,894
Interest expense:
Interest on deposits 16,231 13,902 13,006 15,427 18,849
Interest on short-term borrowing 526 719 739 65 20
Interest on long-term debt 1,231 1,059 251 108 119
Total interest expense B 1_7,988 15,680 13,996 15,600 - 18,988
Net interest income 28,137 27,732 27,139 24,883 21,906
Provision for loan losses 335 316 1,858_ 2,101 1,531
Net interest income after provision
for loan losses 27,802 27,416 25,281 22,782 20,375
Noninterest income:
Service charges, fees and other 5,943 5,048 5,304 5,205 4,926
Investment securities gains (losses), net (10) (23) 1,421 367 39
Total noninterest income 5,933 5,025 6,725 5,572 4,965
Noninterest expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits 10,787 10,550 9,072 8,460 8,035
Other, net 10,874 11,508 11,152 9,570 9,010
Total noninterest expenses 21,661 22,058 20,224 - 1@39 17,045
Net income before income taxes 12,074 10,383 11,782 10,324 8,295
Income taxes 4,915 4,350 4,779 4,113 3,031
Tax equivalent adjustment? 114 172 188 211 443
Netincome $ 7,045 $ 5,861 $ 6,815 $ 6,000 $ 4,821
Primary earnings per common share’ $ 1.46 $ 1.18 $ 142 $ 1.46 $ 1.10
Fully diluted earnings per common share® $ 1.45 $ 1.18 $ 1.40 $ 1.46 $ 1.10
Selected Balance Sheet Information
Total Assets $603,554 $593,834 $575,897 $492 404 $439,358
Long-term Debt 26,292 18,499 7,144 907 1,027
Preferred Stock — 3,899 6,086 8,630

3,899

'Restated on a historical basis to reflect the July 21, 1994 acquisition of Country National Bank on a pooling-of-interests basis.
“Interest on tax-free securities is reported on a tax equivalent basis of 1.72 for 1995, 1.75 for 1994, 1.79 for 1993, 1.76 for 1992, and 1.49 for 1991.

*Restated on a historical basis to reflect the 5-for-4 stock split effected September 22, 1995.
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(A) RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Net Interest Income/Net Interest Margin

Net interest income represents the excess of interest and
fees earned on interest-carning assets (loans, securities and
federal funds sold) over the interest paid on deposits and bor-
rowed funds. Net interest margin is net interest income ex-
pressed as a percentage of average earning assets.

In 1995 net interest income increased $405,000 (1.5%)
to $28,137,000. The interest income component increased
$2,713,000 (6.3%) to $46,125,000. Rates received on loans
in 1995 averaged 10.95% which was 85 basis points higher
than rates received in 1994. The higher rates accounted for
the majority of the increase in interest income. Average loans
outstanding also increased modestly in 1995 as did rates re-
ceived on securities and Federal Funds sold. These increases
were offset in part by an 8.1% ($18,411,000) decrease in av-
erage balances of investment securities which resulted in a
reduction of $1,052,000 to interest income.

For 1995 the interest expense component increased
$2,308,000 (14.7%) to $17,988,000 over 1994. Most of this
increase can be attributed to higher rates paid on time certifi-
cates of deposit in 1995. The average rate paid on time cer-
tificates increased 133 basis points or 32% over the 1994 av-
erage. This large increase was due to the local competitive
market environment. During part of the year, Management
did not raise the rates to meet the local competition and as a
result some deposit runoff was experienced. For the year,
average balances on interest-bearing deposits decreased
$9,118,000 (2.2%). The higher rates on time certificates also
caused customers to shift some funds from savings to time
certificates. Average balances in savings accounts decreased
$44.,572,000 (21.1%) as time certificate balances increased
$35,179,000 (27.1%). The effect of the changes in the net
interest income and the average balances of the interest earn-
ing assets and the interest-bearing liabilities resulted in an
overall increase of 18 basis points in net interest margin. Net
interest margin for 1995 was 5.36% versus 5.18% in 1994.

The net interest income for 1994 of $27,732,000 was an
increase of $593,000 (2.2%) over 1993. Interest income in-
creased 5.5% as the growth in investment securities and
slightly higher yields on securities offset lower average loan
balances. The net interest income in 1994 was adversely af-
fected by a 12.0% increase in interest expense as both the
volume of interest-bearing liabilities and rates paid on them
increased. Even though net interest income increased, net
interest margin in 1994 decreased 31 basis points to 5.18%.
The net interest margin reflected a 22 basis point decline in

the average yield received on earning assets coupled with a 9
basis point increase in the average rates paid on interest-bear~
ing liabilities. Because loan demand remained relatively soft
throughout most of 1994, asset growth was in investment
securities which have lower yields than loans. :

Interest income in 1994 increased $2,277,000 or 5.5%
over 1993. Growth in the securities portfolio from an aver-
age balance of $167,244,000 in 1993 to $228,616,000 in 1994
coupled with a 20 basis point increase in security yields re-
sulted in an increase of $3,637,000 to interest income. This
increase was offset by a decrease in loan interest income due
to lower volumes. Overall yield on the earning assets de-
creased 22 basis points as the increased volume of earning
assets was in the securities which have lower yields than loans.

Interest expense increased $1,684,000 to $15,680,000 in
1994. Most of the increase was due to the volume of inter-
est-bearing liabilities as average rates paid increased just 10
basis points from 1993 levels. While rates paid on the full
year basis within the deposit category were not significantly
changed from the prior year, time deposits in the fourth quar-
ter reflected a jump of 62 basis points from the 1993 levels.

Table One, Analysis of Change in Net Interest Margin
on Earning Assets, and Table Two, Analysis of Volume and
Rate Changes on Net Interest Income and Expenses, are pro-
vided to enable the reader to understand the components and
past trends of the Bank’s interest income and expenses. Table
One provides an analysis of change in net interest margin on
earning assets setting forth average assets, liabilities and share—
holders’ equity; interest income earned and interest expense
paid and average rates earned and paid; and the net interest
margin on earning assets. T'able Two presents an analysis of
volume and rate change on net interest income and expense.
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(A) RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Table One: Analysis of Change in Net Interest Margin on Earning Assets

Assets

Earning assets:
Loans*?
Securities - taxable
Securities - nontaxable

Federal funds sold

4

Total earning assets

Cash and due from banks
Premises and equipment
Other assets, net
Less: Unrealized loss
on securities
Less: Allowance for loan
losses

Total assets

Liabilities and

shareholders' equity

Interest-bearing demand
deposits

Savings deposits

Time deposits

Federal funds purchased

Repurchase agreements

Long-term debt

Total interest-bearing
liabilities

Noninterest-bearing
deposits

Other liabilities

Shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and
shareholders' equity

Net interest rate spread®

Net interest income/net
interest margin®

Average
Balance'

$308,473
207,163
3,042
6,702

525,380

29,150
13,206
19,537

(3,156)

(5,636)
$578,481

$ 81,408
166,637
164,965

1,953
6,696
21,416

443,075

76,184
8,196
51,026

$578,481

1995

Income

$33,776
11,706
272

371

46,125

2,000
5,167
9,064
120
406
1,231

17,988

$28,137

! Average balances are computed principally on the basis of daily balances.

2 Nonaccrual loans are included.

Yield/
Rate

10.95 %
5.65%
8.93 %
5.54%

8.78 %

2.46 %
3.10%
5.49 %
6.14 %
6.06 %
5.75%

4.06 %

4.72 %

5.36 %

3 Interest income on loans includes fees on loans of $1,676,000 in 1995, $1,701,000 in

1994 and $2,241,000 in 1993.

1994

Average Yield/
Balance’ Income  Rate

(dollars in thousands)

$303,497  $30,641 10.10%
224,447 12247  5.46%
4,169 401 9.62%
3,727 123 3.30%

535,840 43,412 8.10%

31,935
13,151
19,240

(3,538)

(5,917)
$590,711

$ 81,133 2,066  2.55%
211,209 6,442  3.05%
129,786 5394  4.16%
3,726 174 4.67%
10,727 545 5.08%
20,637 1,059  5.13%

457,218 15,680 3.43%

79,776
6,014
47,703

$590,711
4.67 %

$27,732  5.18%

Average
Balance'

$314,691
163,322
3,922
12,394

494,329

30,546
11,749
14,479

(5,731)

$545,372

$ 71,751
206,975
114,649

1,760
20,104
4,440

419,679

74,812
6,141
44,740

$545,372

1993

Income

$31,795
8,585
426
329

41,135

1,885
6,523
4,598
59
680
251

13,996

$27,139

Yield/
Rate

10.10 %
526 %
10.86 %
2.65%

8.32%

2.63 %
3.15%
4.01 %
3.35%
3.38%
5.65%

3.33%

4.99 %

5.49 %

¢ Interest income is stated on a tax equivalent basis of 1.72 for 1995, 1.75 for 1994 and

1.79 for 1993.

% Net interest rate spread represents the average yield earned on interest-earning assets
less the average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities.
¢ Net interest margin is computed by dividing net interest income by total average

earning assets.

TRICO BANCSHARES 1995 ANNUAL REPORT



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF @
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

(A) RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)

= — e = 1

Table Two: Analysis of Volume and Rate Changes on Net Interest Income and Expenses

1995 over 1994 1994 over 1993
Yield/ Yield/,
Volume Rate * Total Volume Rate * Total
Increase (decrease) in (dollars in thousands)
interest income:
Loans'? § 502 $2,633 $3,135 §(1,131) $ (23) $(1,154)
Investment securities® (1,052) 382 (670) 3,240 397 3,637
Federal funds sold 5 98 150 248 (230) 24 (206)
Total (452) 3,165 2,713 1,879 398 2,277
Increase (decrease) in N _
Interest expense:
Demand deposits
(interest-bearing) 7 (73) (66) 246 (65) 181
Savings deposits (1,359) 84 (1,275) 133 (214) (81)
Time deposits 1,462 2,208 3,670 607 189 796
Federal funds purchased (83) 29 (54) 66 49 115
Repurchase agreements (205) 66 (139) (317) 182 (135)
Long-term borrowings 40 132 172 916 (108) 808
Total (138) 2,446 2,308 1,651 33 1,684
Increase (decrease) in
net interest income $ (314) $ 719 $ 405 $ 228 § 365 § 593

' Nonaccrual loans are included.
2 Interest income on loans includes fees on loans of $1,676,000 in 1995, $1,701,000 in
1994 and $2,241,000 in 1993.

Provision for Loan Losses

The 1995 provision for loan losses of $335,000 was a
slight increase over the 1994 provision. This provision es-
sentially maintained the allowance for loan losses at a con-
stant level as the provision and loan recoveries were just
$28,000 less than the loans charged off. Net charge-offs for
the year were only .12% of average loans outstanding which
was reflective of the continuing quality of the loan portfolio.
Nonperforming loans were .76% of total loans at year end
versus .37% in 1994. The allowance for loan losses to
nonperforming loans was 226% versus 489% at the end of
1994. These two ratios for the Bank compare to averages of
about 3.2% and 82% respectively, for California peer banks.
(See balance sheet analysis “Allowance for Loan Losses” for
further discussion.)

The Bank reduced its provision for loan losses in 1994
to $316,000 for a decrease of 82% from 1993. The provision
was reduced from prior year levels as loan quality remained
very good with net charge-offs equaling just .22% of average
loans outstanding. Nonperforming loans were .37% of total
loans at year end versus .56% in 1993. The allowance for
loan losses to nonperforming loans was 489% versus 347% at

the end of 1993.

* Interest incomc is stated on a tax equivalent basis of 1.72 for 1995, 1.75 for 1994 and
1.79 for 1993.
' The rate/volumc variance has been included in the rate variance.

Service Charges and Fees and Other Income

Service charge and fee income grew by 16.6% to
$4,163,000 in 1995. Most of the increase came from fee
increases on returned checks coupled with volume increases.
The 20.4% or $302,000 increase in other income resulted
from a mixture of changes within the category and nonrecur-
ring items. Gains on the sale of loans was down for the sec-
ond straight year as origination of mortgage loans continued
to be soft. Commissions on the sales of mutual funds and
annuities decreased 5% to 8% as sales were soft in the first
part of 1995.

In 1994 service charge and fee income was relatively flat
versus 1993. No accounts within the category had a year
over year variance exceeding 2% of the category. Other in-
come decreased $269,000 to $1,478,000 in 1994. Gains on
the sale of loans decreased $274,000 or 61% from the 1993
level. Origination of mortgage loans were off significantly
due to the higher interest rates. Commissions from the sale
of investment products increased a modest 1.9% to $945,000
in 1994. However, due to the stock market conditions dur-
ing 1994, commissions from the sale of mutual funds de-
creased $114,000 (56.8%) while commissions on the sale of
annuities increased $156,000 (26.9%). Other categories did

not have any significant changes.
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MENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

(A) RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Securities Transactions

The Bank had very few securities transactions in 1995.
It realized a total net loss of $10,000 for the year on sales of
securities. The flat yield curve present for most of 1995 pre-
sented few opportunities to invest at rates attractive to Bank
Management. The current investment strategy consists of
allowing the investment portfolio to shrink as securities ma-
ture or prepayments are received. These funds will be in-
vested in short term instruments until they can be deployed
into loans or until the yield curve for intermediate term secu-
rities improves.

Sales activity from the available-for-sale securities in 1994
was significantly reduced from the 1993 levels. The Bank
realized a total net loss of $23,000 as compared to a gain of
$1,421,000 in 1993 as a result of restructuring the invest-
ment portfolio. During 1993, the continuing decline of in-
terest rates had presented Management with an on-going
challenge to maintain an acceptable yield on its investment
securities while maintaining reasonable interest rate risk.
Because of this decline, Management elected to make greater
use of Collateralized Mortgage Obligations (CMO’s) which
paid higher rates of interest than equivalent maturity U.S.
Treasuries or Agencies. By the end of 1993, the Bank had
mostly completed restructuring its investment portfolio for
both improved yields and in preparation for adoption of SFAS
115 on January 1, 1994.

Salaries and Benefits

Salary and benefit expenses increased 2.25% or $237,000
in 1995. Base salaries increased $259,000 (3.6%) and were
reflective of the full year effect of staffing for the in-store
branches and normal salary reviews. Management incentive
payments for 1995 were less than those for 1994, as approxi-
mately $245,000 in one time bonus and termination pay-
ments were made to Country National Bank employees in
1994. Group insurance expenses decreased 10.0% mostly due
to a one time premium refund. These expenses are not ex-
pected to increase significantly in 1996.

In 1994, salaries and benefits increased $1,478,000 or
16.3%. Of the increase $745,000 was attributable to base
salaries which included the effect for supermarket staffing, a
new in-house legal department, a new collections department
and normal salary increases. In addition approximately
$245,000 of the increase was due to the payments to Coun-
try National Bank employees discussed above. The balance
of the increase was due to increases in employee incentive
pay and employee benefits including payroll taxes.
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Other Expenses

Other expenses decreased $634,000 or 5.5% in 1995. In
September the FDIC significantly reduced deposit insurance
premiums retroactive to June 1995. For the year, the lower
insurance premium and lower average deposits resulted in a
favorable change of $478,000 from 1994. Greater savings
will be realized in 1996 as the FDIC has reduced the deposit
insurance premium to zero ($0) for well capitalized banks as
long as its insurance fund maintains the prescribed level. The
absence of the one time merger costs of approximately
$840,000 incurred in 1994 also favorably impacted other ex-
penses in 1995. A 9.0% ($302,000) increase in premise and
equipment expenses which were mostly due to the full year
effect of the in-store branches partially offset these large de-
creases. Net increases in various other expenses totaled ap-
proximately $380,000 with no single expense classification
being significant.

In 1994 other expenses increased $355,000 or 3.2% to
$11,508,000. Within the overall category there were some
large variances. For the following categories of expense, most
of the variances were related to either increased business ac-
tivity at the new supermarket branches or the acquisition of
CNB: amortization of leasehold improvements increased
$36,000 or 70.8%; depreciation on equipment increased
$187,000 or 30.3%; purchase of customer checks increased
$75,000 or 74%; outside data processing services increased
$88,000 or 47% due to conversion costs for CNB; commu-
nication costs increased $114,000 or 37%; advertising costs
increased $48,000 or 11.4%; promotion expenses increased
$43,000 or 91.5%; professional fees increased $329,000 or
100% and were mostly merger related. Other large variances
occurred in the following accounts: service charges for the
automated teller machines (ATM) increased $81,000 or 126%
as costs were incurred to change the vendor that provided the
ATM network services; amortization for market discount on
stock options was $124,000 as this was the first year for this
charge; FDIC assessment increased $71,000 due to higher
deposit volumes. Significant decreases occurred in the fol-
lowing categories: postage decreased $76,000 or 18% in part
due to consolidating mailings; provision for OREQ losses
decreased $663,000 or 93% as OREO activity decreased dur-
ing the year; legal fees for loan collection decreased $236,000
or 57% as this function was brought in house after the first
quarter.

Provision for Taxes

The effective tax rate on income was 41.1%, 42.6% and
41.2% in 1995, 1994, and 1993. The effective tax rate was
greater than the federal statutory tax rate due to state tax
expense of $1,311,000, $1,182,000 and $1,186,000 in these
years. Tax-free income of $158,000, $229,000 and $238,000

from investment securities in these years helped to reduce
the effective tax rate. In both 1994 and 1993 nondeductible
expenses related to the CNB merger were incurred which
increased the effective tax rate.
1 ¥

Return on Average Assets and Equity’

The following table sets forth certain ratios for the Com-
pany for the last three years (using average balance sheet data):

1995 1994 1993

Return on assets 1.22% .99% 1.25%
Return on shareholders' equity 13.81% 12.29% 15.23%
Return on common shareholders'

equity 13.95% 12.42% 15.81%
Shareholders' equity to assets 8.82% 8.06% 8.21%
Common sharcholders' equity to

assets 8.82% 7.42% 7.17%
Common shareholders' dividend

payout ratio 24.10% 23.97% 22.64%

Return on assets rebounded in 1995 to 1.22% from the
0.99% achieved in 1994. The higher return was achieved
through improved earnings applied to average assets which
were $12,230,000 lower in 1995. Return on assets of 0.99%
in 1994 was down from 1.25% attained in the prior year.
The lower ROA achieved in 1994 was reflective of the com-
pounding of an increase in average assets of 8.3% and a de-
crease in net income of 14%.

The return on shareholder’s equity improved to 13.8%
in 1995 versus the 12.3% return achieved in 1994. The im-
proved ROE for 1995 was reflective of both increased earn-
ings and higher average sharcholders’ equity. Return on share-
holders’ equity fell to 12.3% in 1994 from 15.2% in 1993.
Average capital due to earnings increased 6.6% while net in-
come decreased.

In the past two years the difference between the return
on Common shareholders’ equity and return on sharehold-
ers' equity has been narrowing. This change is due to the
reduction of the dividend amounts paid for preferred stock
dividends. In August of 1995, the Company redeemed its
Series B Preferred Stock and in December of 1993, it had
redeemed its Series C Preferred Stock. The annual dividend
requirements for these two issues were $420,000 and $229,000
respectively. Since all of the Company’s preferred shares have
now been redeemed, from 1996 forward there will not be
any requirements for preferred dividends.

The total shareholders’ equity to asset ratio increased in
1995 to 8.8% from 8.1%. This reflects the combination of
the reduction in average assets, the increased earnings and
the redemption of the Series B Preferred Stock. In 1994
there was just a .1% increase from 1993. The December 1993
redemption of the Series C Preferred Stock coupled with the
growth in assets contributed to this change.
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(A) RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)

The Common shareholders” equity to assets ratio in-
creased from 7.2% in 1993 to 7.4% in 1994 and 8.4% in 1995.
These ratios are impacted by the same factors as the total
equity ratios except for the direct effect of reduction in total
capital for the redemption of the preferred stock issues.

In 1995, dividends paid to Common shareholders to-
taled $1,639,000 as compared to $1,304,000 in 1994. The
resulting Common shareholders’” dividend payout ratio of
24.1% was .1% higher than the payout for 1994. The in-
crease in dividends paid matched the earnings growth. Com-
mon shareholders’ dividend payout ratio increased to 24.0%
in 1994 from 22.6% in 1993 even though total dividend dis-
tributions to Common shareholders decreased to $1,304,000
from $1,400,000. The payout ratio increased as the 6.9%
decrease in cash dividends paid was offset by the 12.0% de-

crease in income available for Common shareholders.

(B) BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS

Loans

‘The Company concentrates its lending activities in four
principal areas: commercial loans (including agricultural
loans); consumer loans; real estate mortgage loans (residen-
tial and commercial loans and mortgage loans originated for
sale); and real estate construction loans. At December 31,
1995, these four categories accounted for approximately 48%,
20%, 26% and 6%, respectively, of the Company’s loan port-
folio. The interest rates charged for the loans made by the
Company vary with the degree of risk, the size and maturity
of the loans, the borrower’s relationship with the Company
and prevailing money market rates indicative of the
Company’s cost of funds.

The majority of the Company’s loans are direct loans
made to individuals, farmers and local businesses. The Com-
pany relies substantially on local promotional activity, per-
sonal contacts by bank officers, directors and employees to
compete with other financial institutions. The Company
makes loans to borrowers whose applications include a sound
purpose, a viable repayment source and a plan of repayment
established at inception and generally backed by a secondary
source of repayment.

Loan activity, while not robust in 1995, reflected some
improvements over 1994 as average loans outstanding in-
creased 1.6% to $308,473,000 and year end balances increased
3.8% to $318,766,000. The average loan to deposit ratio in
1995 was 63.1% versus 60.7% in 1994. Management antici-
pates that the higher year end loan balances will provide a
good platform for growth in 1996. As mentioned in the
Overview section of this report, the Bank has opened a loan

'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
TON AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

production office in Bakersfield, California and plans to open
a similar office in Sacramento, in 1996. Management’s goal
is to replace maturing investment securities with loans.

Loan demand was soft in 1994 as average loan balances
decreased 3.6% from 1993 levels. The 1994 year end loan
balances of $307,103,000 were up slightly from 1993 ending
balances. The average loan to deposit ratio for 1994 was down
6.5% from the 1993 average of 67.2%.

In 1993 the Bank installed a new software system which
resulted in some changes in the loan classifications. The prior
year classifications were not restated in the following table,
but in general there was not a significant change in the loan
mix. Over the five year period real estate construction loans
have decreased as the result of economic conditions and de-
emphasis of this loan type by the Bank. Commercial loans
have generally increased as a percent of loans and this in-
crease has offset the decrease in construction loan percent.

Management does not foresee any significant changes
occurring in the loan mix in the coming year.

Loan Portfolio Composite

December 31, )
1991

1995 1994 1993 1992
(dollars in th_ousands)

Commercial,

financial and

agricultural $152,173 $153,957 $140,750 $150,685 $149,960
Consumer

installment 64,445 58,471 55,654 47,726 51,635
Real estate

mortgage 81,888 76,673 88,887 88,715 83,187
Real estate

construction 20,260 18,002 20,611 30,392 31,615
Total loans $318,766 $307,103 $305,902 $317,518 $316,397

Nonaccrual, Past Due and Restructured Loans

Nonperforming assets at December 31, 1995 totaled
$3,064,000 which was a 6.3% decrease from 1994. The
OREO component had a significant decrease from
$2,124,000 in 1994 to $631,000 in 1995. However, this de-
crease was offset in great part by an increase in nonperforming
loans. They increased from $1,146,000 in 1994 to $2,433,000
in 1995. The nonperforming loans at December 31, 1995
consisted of numerous lower value loans with the largest be-
ing about $188,000. With this increase, the ratio of
nonperforming loans to total loans was .76% as compared to
.37% in 1994. While nonperforming loans are up from the
prior year, management does not see a trend of increasing
problem loans.
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(B) BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS (continued)

Both nonperforming loans and nonperforming assets at
December 31, 1994 reflected significant decreases from 1993
year end totals. Nonperforming loans decreased 33.4% to
$1,146,000 and nonperforming assets decreased 38.8% to
$3,270,000. Bank management had emphasized improving
collections during 1994 and actively sought to dispose of
OREO properties. Both of these actions helped to reduce
the nonperforming loans and assets. At .37% of total loans,
nonperforming loans were at their lowest as a percentage of
total loans in the prior five years.

Commercial, real estate and consumer loans are reviewed
on an individual basis for reclassification to nonaccrual status
when any one of the following occurs: the loan becomes 90
days past due as to interest or principal (unless in
Management’s opinion the loan is well secured and in the
process of collection), the full and timely collection of addi-
tional interest or principal becomes uncertain, the loan is clas-
sified as doubtful by internal auditors or bank regulatory agen-
cies, a portion of the principal balance has been charged off,
or the Company takes possession of the collateral. The re-
classification of loans as nonaccrual does not necessarily re-
flect Management’s judgment as to whether they are collect-
ible.

Interest income is not accrued on loans where Manage-
ment has determined that the borrowers will be unable to
meet contractual principal and/or interest obligations, unless
the loan is well secured and in process of collection. When a
loan is placed on nonaccrual, any previously accrued but un-
paid interest has been reversed. Income on such loans is then
recognized only to the extent that cash is received and where
the future collection on principal is probable. Interest accru-
als are resumed on such loans only when they are brought
fully current with respect to interest and principal and when,
in the judgment of Management, the loans are estimated to
be fully collectible as to both principal and interest.

Interest income on nonaccrual loans which would have
been recognized during the year ended December 31, 1995,
if all such loans had been current in accordance with their
original terms, totaled $166,000. Interest income actually
recognized on these loans in 1995 was $66,000.

With respect to the Company’s policy of placing loans
90 days or more past due on nonaccrual status unless the
loan is well secured and in the process of collection, a loan is
considered to be in the process of collection if, based on a
probable specific event, it is expected that the loan will be
repaid or brought current. Generally, this collection period
would not exceed 30 days. Loans where the collateral has
been repossessed are classified as OREO or, if the collateral
is personal property, the loan is classified as other assets on
the Company’s financial statements.

Management considers both the adequacy of the collat-
eral and the other resources of the borrower in determining
the steps to be taken to collect nonaccrual loans. Alterna-
tives that are considered are foreclosure, collecting on guar-
antees, restructuring the loan or collection lawsuits.

The following table sets forth the amount of the
Company’s nonperforming assets as of the dates indicated.

December 31,
1993

(dollars in t_hou;ds)

$1,595

1995 1994 1992 1991

Nonaccrual loans $ 583 $1,562
Accruing loans

past due 90

days or more 220 24 126
Restructured loans

(in compliance

with modified

terms) — — — £ —_

$2,213 $1,122

1,611 989

Total nonper-

forming loans
Other real estate

owned 631

2,433 1,146 1,721 2,194 2,551

2,124 3,624 1,860 1,426

Total nonper-
forming assets

$3,064  §$3,270 $ 5,345 $4,054  $3,977

Nonincome
producing invest-
ments in real
estate held by
Bank's real estate
development
subsidiary $1,173 $1,173 $1,172

$1,240 $1,735

Nonperforming '
loans to total loans

Allowance for loan
losses to nonper-
forming loans

Nonperforming
assets to total
assets

Allowance for loan
losses to nonper-
forming assets

76% 37% 56% 69% .81%

229% 489% 347% 219% 163%

.51% 55% 93% 82% 91%

182% 171% 112% 118% 105%
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(B) BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS (continued)

Allowance for Loan Losses Activity

In determining the adequacy of the allowance for loan
losses, Management relies primarily on its review of the loan
portfolio both to ascertain whether there are probable losses
to be written off and to assess the loan portfolio in the aggre-
gate. Problem loans are examined on an individual basis to
determine estimated probable loss. In addition, Manage-
ment considers current and projected loan mix and loan vol-
umes, historical net loan loss experience for each loan cat-
egory and current and anticipated economic conditions af-
fecting each loan category. Based on the current conditions
of the loan portfolio and nonperforming assets as discussed
in the previous section, Management decreased the allow-
ance for loan losses to 1.75% of outstanding loans at Decem-
ber 31, 1995 versus 1.83% at the prior year end. It is antici-
pated the Bank will continue to provide for loan losses at this
level in the near term.

Management believes that the $5,580,000 allowance for
loan losses at December 31, 1995 is adequate to absorb prob-
able losses inherent in the Bank’s loan portfolio. No assur-
ance can be given, however, that adverse economic condi-
tions or other circumstances will not result in increased losses
in the portfolio.

The primary risk elements considered by Management
with respect to installment and residential real estate loans is
lack of timely payment and the value of the collateral. The
primary risk elements considered by Management with re-
spect to its credit card portfolio are general economic condi-
tions, timeliness of payments and the potential for fraud and
over limit credit draws. The primary risk elements consid-
ered by Management with respect to real estate construction
loans are the financial condition of borrowers, fluctuations
in real estate values in the Company’s market areas, fluctua-
tions in interest rates, timeliness of payments, the availability
of conventional financing, the demand for housing in the
Company’s market areas and general economic conditions.
The primary risk elements with respect to commercial loans
are the financial condition of the borrower, general economic
conditions in the Company’s market area, the sufficiency of
collateral, the timeliness of payment and, with respect to ad-
justable rate loans, interest rate fluctuations.

ISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
'.ITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

The following table summarizes, for the years indicated,
the activity in the allowance for loan losses:

December 31,

1995 1994 1993 1992 1991

@a;s in_thous:mds)

Balance, begin-

ning of year
Provision charged

to operations 335 316 1,858 2,101 1,531
Loans charged

off:
Commercial,

financial and

agricultural (149) (338) (653) (875) (976)
Consumer

installment (432) (712) (622) (719) (446)
Real estate

mortgage —_ —_ — 23) —_

Total loans -
charged-off (581)

Recoveries:
Commercial,

financial and

agricultural 98 205 380
Consumer

installment 120 164 212 52 68

Total recoveries 218 369 592 158 452

$ 5608 $ 5973 $ 4,798 $ 4,156 $ 3,595

(1,050) (1,275) (1,617) (1,422)

106 384

Net loans
charged-off (363) (681) (683)

(1,459) (970)

Balance, year
end $ 5,580

Average total
loans $308,473

Ratios:
Net charge-offs

during period

to average

loans out-

standing

during period 12% 22% .22% A46% .32%
Provision for loan

losses to aver-

age loans out-

standing 11% .10% .59% .66% .50%
Allowance to

loans at year

end' 1.75% 1.83% 1.95% 1.51% 1.31%

'Banker's acceptances and commercial paper are not included.

$ 5,608 $ 5,973 $ 4,798 $ 4,156

$303,497 $318,839  $305,562

$314,691

As part of its loan review process, Management has de-
veloped pools of reserves based on specific identified prob-
lem loans and historical loss data. The following tables sum-
marize the allocation of the allowance for loan losses at De-

cember 31, 1995 and 1994.
December 31, 1995

(dollars in thousands)

Percent of

loans in each

category to

Balance at End of Period Applicable to: Amount total loans
Commercial, financial and agricultural $ 3,932 47.7%
Real Estate—construction e 6.4%
Real Estate—mortgage 355 25.7%
Installment loans to individuals 1,293 20.2%
$ 5,580 100.0%
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(B) BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS (continued)

December 31, 1994

"~ (dotlars in thousands)

Percent of

loans in each

category to

Balance at End of Period Applicable to: " Amount total loans
Commercial, financial and agricultural $ 3,271 50.1%
Real Estate—construction — 5.9%
Real Estate—mortgage 407 25.0%
Installment loans to individuals 1,234 19.0%
Unallocated 696 N/A
$ 5,608 100.0%

Investment in Real Estate Properties
At December 31, 1995 and 1994, $1,173,000 of prop-
erty was held by a subsidiary of the Bank for the purposes of

development.

Other Real Estate Owned

The December 31, 1995 balance of Other Real Estate
Owned (OREQO) was $631,000 versus $2,124,000 in 1994.
Properties foreclosed in 1995 and remaining in the Bank’s
possession at year end were valued at $206,000 net of a valu-
ation allowance of $9,000. OREQ properties consist of a

mixture of land, single family residences and commercial

buildings. OREO had decreased $1,500,000 in 1994.

Deposits

Deposits at December 31, 1995 were up 5.1% to
$516,193,000 over the 1994 year end balances. In-store de-
posits almost doubled in 1995 ending the year at $29,605,000.
There was growth in both the interest-bearing and
noninterest-bearing demand deposits. However, most of the
growth was attributable to time certificates of deposit (CD’s).
They increased $49,334,000 or 37.7% during 1995. At the
same time, savings deposits decreased $29,321,000 (15.4%).
Depositors moved funds from savings to CD’s as the yields
on CD’ often were 200-300 basis points higher. The local
market conditions dictated the high CD rates. The increase
of $12.3 million in the over $100,000 CD category is largely
attributable to a $9.0 million deposit from the State of Cali-
fornia. This deposit has a 90 day maturity and is renewable
at the Bank’s option.

In 1994 total deposits decreased $24,880,000 or 4.8%
from 1993 ending balances. Essentially all of the decrease
occurred in savings accounts and time deposits. During the
second half of 1993 as interest rates rose, banks and savings
and loan institutions in the Bank’s market area began offer-
ing higher rates on CD’s. Bank Management did not choose
to meet some of these rates until late in the year. Conse-
quently, some funds moved out of the Bank’s deposit base.
Management believed that the Bank had sufficient liquidity
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(B) BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS (continued)

and ability to meet the loan demand so some runoff of de-
posits could be tolerated. At the end of 1993, the in-store
branches had deposits totaling just over $15,000,000.

Accrued Interest Payable

At December 31, 1995, the balance of accrued interest
payable was $3,162,000 which was an increase of $1,402,000
over the 1994 year end. This increase was attributable to the
higher rates and balances in time certificates of deposit. At
December 31, 1994, accrued interest payable had increased
$30,000 to $1,760,000. The increase was due to the higher
rates of interest being accrued on time certificates of deposit
and was offset by lower CD balances.

Long-Term Debt

During 1995 the Bank incurred long term debt in the
amount of $9,828,000 with a term of two years. This debt is
in the form of a repurchase agreement. The Bank also re-
tired $2,000,000 of long term debt during the year.

During 1994 the Bank incurred long-term debt in the
amount of $11,400,000 with terms varying from one to seven
years. These loans were used as matched funding for loans

made by the Bank.

Equity

The Company and the Bank are subject to the mini-
mum capital requirements of the Federal Reserve Board and
the FDIC. Effective December 31, 1990, the Federal Re-
serve Board guidelines implemented new risk-based capital
ratio requirements. These guidelines provide a measure of
capital adequacy and are intended to reflect the degree of risk
associated with both on and off balance sheet items, includ-
ing residential loans sold with recourse, legally binding loan
commitments and standby letters of credit. Under these regu-
lations, financial institutions are required to maintain capital
to support activities which in the past did not require capital.
A financial institution’s risk-based capital ratio is calculated
by dividing its qualifying capital by its risk-weighted assets.

Qualifying capital is divided into two tiers. Core capital
(Tier 1) consists generally of Common shareholders’ equity,
cumulative (up to 25% of capital) and noncumulative per-
petual preferred stock and minority interest in equity capital
accounts of consolidated subsidiaries. Supplementary capi-
tal (Tier 2) consists of , among other things, allowance for
loan and lease losses up to 1.25% of risk-weighted assets,
cumulative (not qualifying as Tier 1) and limited life pre-
ferred stock, mandatory convertible securities and subordi-
nated debt. Tier 2 capital qualifies as a part of total capital

up to a maximum of 100% of Tier 1 capital. Amounts in
excess of these limits may be issued but are not included in
the calculation of the risk-based capital ratio. As of Decem-
ber 31, 1992, the Company and the Bank must generally
have a minimum ratio of qualifying total capital to risk-
weighted assets of 8%, of which 4% of qualifying total capital
must be in the form of Tier 1 capital.

In addition, the regulators have promulgated capital le-
verage guidelines designed to supplement the risk-based capi-
tal guidelines. Banks and bank holding companies must
maintain a minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to adjusted total
assets of 3% for the highest rated organizations, with all other
banks and holding companies required to maintain an addi-
tional cushion of at least 100 to 200 basis points above the
3% minimum. As of December 31, 1995, the Company’s
Tier 1 capital was 8.9% of adjusted total assets. At Decem-
ber 31, 1994, this ratio was 8.7% of adjusted total assets.

The following table indicates the amounts of regulatory
capital of the Company.

Total Risked-
Based Leverage
(dollars in thousands)

Tier 1

December 31, 1995

Company's % 13.9 % 152 % 8.9 %
Regulatory minimum % 4.0 % 8.0 % 4.0 %
Company's capital $ $ 53,863 $ 58,700 $ 53,863
Regulatory minimum $ 15,479 30,958 24,142
Computed excess $ 38,384 $ 27,742 $ 29,721
December 31, 1994
Company's % 134 % 14.6 % 8.7 %
Regulatory minimum % 4.0 % 8.0 % 4.0%
Company's capital § $ 51,939 $ 56,784 $ 51,939
Regulatory minimum § 15,505 31,011 23,753
Computed excess $ 36,434 $ 25,773 $ 28,186

Management believes that the capital is adequate to sup-
port anticipated growth, meet the cash dividend requirements
of the Company and meet the future risk-based capital re-
quirements of the Bank and the Company.
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(B) BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS (continued)

Liquidity and Interest Rate Sensitivity

Liquidity refers to the Company’s ability to provide funds
at an acceptable cost to meet loan demand and deposit with-
drawals, as well as contingency plans to meet unanticipated
funding needs or loss of funding sources. These objectives
can be met from either the asset or liability side of the bal-
ance sheet. Asset liquidity sources consist of the repayments
and maturities of loans, selling of loans, short-term money
market investments, maturities of securities and sales of se-
curities from the available-for-sale portfolio. These activi-
ties are generally summarized as investing activities in the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. Net cash provided
from these sources totaled approximately $18,556,000 in
1995.

Liquidity is generated from liabilities through deposit
growth and short-term borrowings. These activities are in-
cluded under financing activities in the cash flow statement.
In 1995 cash was used as deposits rose $25,021,000, but was
offset by the repayment of repurchase agreements totaling
$30,457,000. The Company also had available correspon-
dent banking lines of credit totaling $33,000,000. While
these sources are expected to continue to provide significant
amounts of funds in the future, their mix, as well as the pos-
sible use of other sources, will depend on future economic
and market conditions.

Liquidity is also provided or used through the results of
operating activities. Net cash of $9,981,000 was provided
from operating activities in 1995. In 1994 $4,620,000 had
been provided from operating activities.

Since the adoption of SFAS 115 January 1, 1994, Man-
agement has targeted the available-for-sale portfolio (AFS)
to be maintained at 35-40% of the total securities holdings.
The AFS securities plus cash in excess of reserve require-
ments totaled $133,610,000 which was 22.1% of total assets
at year end. This was up from $107,234,000 and 18.1% at
the end of 1994.

The overall liquidity of the Bank is enhanced by the siz-
able core deposits which provide a relatively stable funding
base. The maturity distribution of certificates of deposit in
denominations of $100,000 or more is set forth in the fol-
lowing table. These deposits are generally more rate sensi-
tive than other deposits and, therefore, are more likely to be
withdrawn to obtain higher yields elsewhere if available. In
1995, $9,000,000 of the balance is a deposit by the State of
California which is renewable at the Bank’s option.
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(B) BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS (continued)

Certificates of Deposit in

Denominations of $100,000 or More

Amounts as of

~ December 31,

1995

Time remaining until maturity:
Less than 3 months % 9,985
3 months to 6 months 2,909
6 months to 12 months 545
More than 12 months —
Total $13,439

1994 199:;_

(in thousands)
$ 401 $1,572
717 2,001
= 1,400
— 450
$1,118 $ 5,423

Loan demand also affects the Bank’s liquidity position.
The following table present the maturities of performing loans

at December 31, 1995.

Loan Maturities - December 31, 1995

After
One But
Within Within  After5
One Year 5 Years  Years Total
(in thousands)
Loans with predetermined
Interest rates:
Commercial, financial and
agricultural $ 6,624 $18,798 $ 25931 § 51,353
Consumer installment 3,513 9,831 8,055 21,399
Real estate mortgage 2,349 9,898 34,877 47,124
Real estate construction 6,519 88 103 6,710
19,005 38,615 68,966 126,586
Loans with floating
interest rates:
Commercial, financial and
agricultural 43,800 20,687 36,333 100,820
Consumer installment 12,389 2,611 28,046 43,046
Real estate mortgage 2,070 5,986 26,708 34,764
Real estate construction 13,550 — — 13,550
71,809 29,284 91,087 192,180
Total loans $ 90,814 $67,899 $160,053  $318,766

Interest rate sensitivity is a function of the repricing char-
acteristics of the Company’s portfolio of assets and liabilities.
These repricing characteristics are the time frames within
which the interest-bearing assets and liabilities are subject to
change in interest rates either at replacement, repricing or
maturity. Interest rate sensitivity management focuses on
the maturity of assets and liabilities and their repricing dur-
ing periods of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate
sensitivity is measured as the difference between the volumes
of assets and liabilities in the Company’s current portfolio
that are subject to repricing at various time horizons. The
differences are known as interest sensitivity gaps.

The following repricing tables present the Bank’s inter-
est rate sensitivity position at December 31, 1995 and 1994:

Interest Rate Sensitivity - December 31, 1995

3
months
Interest-earning
assets:
Securities $ 10,403
Fed funds sold 25,600
Loans 190,446
Total interest-
earning assets $ 226,446
Interest-bearing
liabilities
Transaction
deposits $ 245,793
Time 56,402
Long-term
borrowings 7,003
Total interest-
bearing liabili-
ties $ 309,198
Interest sensiti-
vity gap $ (82,752)
Cumulative
sensitivity gap (82,752)
As a percentage of
earning assets:
Interest sensiti-
vity gap (15.39%)
Cumulative
sensitivity gap (15.39%)

Repricing within:

3-6

6-12 1-5
months months years
(dollars in thousands)

$ 9,802 $ 17,195 $111,822
7,262 14,336 40,123

$ 17,064 $ 31,531 $151,945
$ e H — ] —
88,906 29,263 5,520

3 6 18,128

$ 88,909 $ 29,269 $ 23,648
$(71,845) 8 2,262 $128,297
(154,597) (152,336) (24,039)
(13.36%) 0.42% 23.86%
(28.75%)  (28.33%)  (4.47%)

Over
5 years

$ 44,125

66,602

$110,727

1,152

$ 1,152

$109,575

85,537

20.38%

15.91%

Interest Rate Sensitivity - December 31, 1994

Repricing within:
3 3-6 6-12 1-5
months months months years
(dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning
assets:
Securities § 7,441 § 7,045 $ 16,817 $118,338
Fed funds sold — -— —
Loans 168,133 15,627 17,815 31,357
Total interest-
earning assets $175,574 § 22,672 $ 34,632 $149,695
Interest-bearing
liabilities
Transaction
deposits $271,457 § — $ — $ —
Time 24872 67,306 36,249 2,228
Short-term
borrowings 30,457 — -— —
Long-term
borrowings 7,015 15 9 8,448
Total interest-
bearing liabili-
ties $333,801 $ 67,321 $ 36,258 $ 10,676
Interest sensiti-
vity gap $(158,227) §(44,649) $ (1,626) $139,019
Cumulative
sensitivity gap (158,227)  (202,876) (204,502) (65,483)
As a percentage of
earning assets:
Interest sensiti-
vity gap (29.74%)  (8.39%) (0.31%) 26.13%
Cumulative
sensitivity gap (29.74%)  (38.13%) (38.44%) (12.31%)
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Over
5 years

$ 75,257

74171

$149,428

103

3,012

$ 3,115
$146,313

80,830

27.50%

15.19%



MANAGEMENT'S

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND |

(B) BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS (continued)

DISCUSSIC

The maturity distribution and yields of the investment portfolios are presented in the following tables:

Securities Maturities and Weighted Average Yield

s - December 31, 1995

After One Year After Five Years
Within but Through but Through After Ten
One Year B Five Years Ten Years Years Total
Amount  Yield Amount  Yield Amount  Yield Amount  Yield Amount  Yield
Securities Held-to-Maturity (dollars in thousands)
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of
U.S. government corporations and agencies $ 3,012 6.22% $22,519 5.81% $ 2,000 6.50% $ 2,610 6.84% § 30,141 5.92%

Obligations of states and political subdivisions 130 3.59% 719 4.23% — — — — 849  4.30%
Mortgage-backed securities — — 4,795  5.76% 9,606 6.09 % 72,341 5.86 % 86,742 5.70%

Total securities held-to-maturity $ 3,142 6.11% $ 28,033 5.76% $ 11,606 6.16 % $ 74,951 5.74% $117,732 5.76%
Securities Available-for-Sale
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of

U.S. government corporations and agencies 816,614 523% $22,855 5.88% § e —_ § 2,539 6.70% § 42,038 5.45%

Obligations of states and political subdivisions 247  5.70% 1,022 5.38% 431 5.65 % — — 1,700 5.78%
Mortgage-backed securities —_ —_ 1,072 6.93% — — 28,004 5.42 % 29,076 5.25%
Other securities —_ —_ —_ = —_ = 3,668 — 3,668 —_

Total securities available-for-sale $ 16,891 524 % $24,949 590% § 431 5.65% $ 34,211 553% $ 76,482 5.36%

Total all securities $ 20,033 5.38% $52,982 5.83%  $12,037 6.14% $109,162 579% $194,214 5.62%

Less: unrealized loss on securities transferred from available-for-sale $  (867)

Less: unrealized loss on securities available-for-sale (236)

Total $193,211

The principal cash requirements of the Company are ~ Disclosure of Fair Value

dividends on Common Stock when declared. The Com-
pany is dependent upon the payment of cash dividends by
the Bank to service its commitments. The Company expects
that the cash dividends paid by the Bank to the Company
will be sufficient to meet this payment schedule.

Off-Balance Sheet Items

The Bank has certain ongoing commitments for operat-
ing leases. (See footnote G for the terms.) These commit-
ments do not severely impact operating results.

As of December 31, 1995 commitments to extend credit
were the sole source of financial instruments with off-bal-
ance sheet risk. The Bank has not entered into any contracts
for financial derivative instruments such as futures, swaps,
options etc. Loan commitments increased to $91,276,000
from $81,513,000 at December 31, 1994. Much of the in-
crease relates to credit cards. The commitments represent
28.6% of the total loans outstanding at year end 1995 versus
26.5% a year ago.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB),
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Number 107,
Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Statements, re-
quires the disclosure of fair value of most financial instru-
ments, whether recognized or not recognized in the financial
statements. The intent of presenting the fair values of finan-
cial instruments is to depict the market’s assessment of the
present value of net future cash flows discounted to reflect
both current interest rates and the market’s assessment of the
risk that the cash flows will not occur.

In determining fair values, the Company used the carry-
ing amount for cash, short-term investments, accrued inter-
est receivable, short-term borrowings and accrued interest
payable as all of these instruments are short term in nature.
Securities are reflected at quoted market values. Loans and
deposits have a long term time horizon which required more
complex calculations for fair value determination. Loans are
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(B) BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS (continued)

grouped into homogeneous categories and broken down be-
tween fixed and variable rate instruments. Loans with a vari-
able rate, which reprice immediately, are valued at carrying
value. The fair value of fixed rate instruments is estimated by
discounting the future cash flows using current rates. Credit
risk and repricing risk factors are included in the current rates.
Fair value for nonaccrual loans is reported at carrying value
and is included in the net loan total. Since the allowance for
loan losses exceeds any potential adjustment for nonaccrual
valuation, no further valuation adjustment has been made.

Demand deposits, savings and certain money market
accounts are short term in nature so the carrying value equals
the fair value. For deposits that extend over a period in ex-
cess of four months, the fair value is estimated by discount-
ing the future cash payments using the rates currently offered
for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

At 1995 year end, the fair values calculated on the
Company’s assets are .5% above the carrying values versus
2.9% below the carrying values in 1994. The increase in the
calculated fair values relates to the securities and loan cat-
egories and is the result of the general decrease in interest
rates in 1995.
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Connie Lanham, Manager

Burney Branch
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P.O. Box 98
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Yuba City, California 95992
(916) 671-5563
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The Company will provide to any interested party, without charge, a copy of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31,1995, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including the financial statements
and schedules thereto. The report may be obtained by written request to: Corporate Secretary, TriCo Bancshares, 15

Independence Circle, Chico, CA 95973.
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